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HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Report of the General Pariner

The Board of Managers of the General Parlner of HB Reavis Real Eslate SICAV-SIF {the “Fund”) is pleased lo
present its annual report together with the audited consolidaled financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 of the Fund.

1 Incorporation

The Fund was established in Luxembourg on 25 May 2011 for an unlimiled duration and is governed by
lhe Luxembourg law dated 13 February 2007, as amended refaling to specialized invesiment funds and the
European Alternative Invesiment Fund Managers Directive 2011/81/EC (*AIFMD") which has been implemented in
Luxembourg by the faw of 12 July 0213 on allernalive investment fund managers ("AIFM Law’},

The Fund is wilhin the scope of the AIFM Law and qualifies as an Allernalive Investment Fund {"AIF").

The General Partner of the Fund, HB Reavis Investment Management 8.3 r.l. (the “General Parlner’} is a limited
liability company organised under the laws of Luxembourg {registration number B 161.176) having its reglstered
office al 20, rue de la Poste, L-2346 Luxembourg.

On the alorementioned date, the General Pariner launched the Fund as well as its first Sub Fund named HB Reavis
CE REIF {hereafter *Sub Fund A"},

The General Pariner has appointed Luxembourg investment Solutions S.A. on 20 August 2014 to act as an
Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("investment Manager”, °LIS* or "AIFM’) In accordance wilh the provisions of
the AIFM Law, Luxembourg tnvestment Solutions is a limited liability company organised under the laws of
Luxembaurg, having its registered office at 5, rue Helenhaff, L-1736 Senningerberg, Luxembourg and authorized by
the Luxembourg financial services supervisory aulhority, Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financler ("CSSF")
to exercise the activity as Alternative Investment Fund Manager in accordance with Chapler 2 of the AlFM Law.

HB Reavis 1M Advisor Lid. has been appointed as the Investment Advisor (the “Investment Advisor’} of the Fund and
its Sub-Funds. The Investiment Advisor advises the Investment Manager, and where applicable the General Parlner
wilh regard 1o strategic asset allocation between the countries and sectors within the real estale, and in respect of
appropriate funding strategies regarding expecled macro-economics development, The Investment Advisor also
provides advisory in respect of searching and identification of the feal estate assets to be acquired and/or disposed
by the Fund and provides support in the execution of acquisition and disposal lransactions, as well as financing
arrangements.

CITCO REIF Services {Luxembourg) S.A. has been appoinled as the domiciliary agent, registrar and transfer agent
as well as administrative agent {the "Cenlral Administrator”). The Central Administeator is responsible for the general
administrative functions of the Fund required by Luxembourg taw and, as the case may be, for processing the issue
and redemption of Shares, ihe calculation of the Nel Asset Value of the Shares of each Sub-Fund in the Fund, and
lhe mainlenance of accounting records for the Fund in compliance with the requirements of the AIFM Law.

CITCO Bank Nederland N.V. Luxembourg Branch, with registered office at 20, rue ds la Poste, L-2346 Luxembourg
has been appoinled to provide Deposilary services required under Luxembourg law. The Depositary malinly safe
keeps the Fund's assets, monilors cash flows, manages Investor's subscription payments and performs Custody of
financial instruments.

TPA Horwarth Valuation Services 5.r.0., having ils registered office al Manesova ©17/28, 120 00 Prague 2,
Czech Republic, registered with Ine Commercial Register of the Metropolitan Court in Prague, seclion G, under
number 151085, has been appointed as the external independent valuer (the “External Valuar'} of the Fund and its
Sub-Funds. The External Valuer shall perform the valuation function for the Fund as External Valuer pursuant to the
article 17(4) of the AIFM Law.

Throughout the financial year, all properties owned by the Fund or by its affiliated real estale companies were valued
by one independent and well-known valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle, s.r.o., Astoria Palace, Hodzovo nameslie A,
811 06 Bratislava, Siovakia ("lndependent Valuer"}.

2 Principal activities of the Fund

While there will be no specific country or real estate segment restrictions posed, the Fund will mainly invest in the
Central European region as Stovakia, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary in commercial real estate assels.
The initial Sub-Fund portfolio will provide investments in prime propetlies only located in Slovakia.
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2 Principal activities of the Fund {continued)

The office segment investmenls are restricted to A-class proparties located in central business dislricts of capital
cities fn Slovakia, the Czech Republic and Hungary. In Poland howeaver, both, capital and reglonal cities are eligible
for Investmants in the office segmenl. The retail segment investments will be made in both capital and regional cities
in the entire Central European reglon. Investments in logistic properties will be restricted to altractive and sirategic
lacations only,

The Sub-Fund seeks to maximize the value via investing in properties which in the pasi proved o bear characleristics
of a prime-commercial real estate properly which as such implies lo have a lop-tier tenants porticlio being located in
prime or stralegic locations and seundly built from both technical and architaclonical point of view. The Sub-Fund
seeks lo enhance value of praperlies by contracling an excellent lease management in crder to maximize propeity
income,

3 Risks and uncertainties

An investment in the Fund involves certain risk faclors and considerations refating to the Fund's structure and
investment objeclives.

3.1. Nature of investments in the Fund

The Fund is not intended for shorl-term investment and the Fund's invesiment objective and policy assumes that
Shares will be held for an extended period. There can be no assurance that he Fund will achieve its investment
objective or that the Investor will receive any return on or of his invested capitat, Pasl performance is not a guarantee
of future results.

3.2, Nature of investments In real estate

The investmenls are subject to the risks incident o the ownership and operalion of commercial and multi-family
residential real estate, including, bul not limiled 1o, risks associated with the general economic climate, local real
eslate condilions, competilion from olher real estate companies, the ability of the third party properly managers lo
manage and lease {he properties, unavailability of morigage funds or fluctuations in the inlerest rates that may render
lhe sale of a property difficult, the financial condition of tenants, buyers and sellers of properlies, changes in real
estale tax rates, energy prices and olher operating expenses, the imposilion of rent controls, energy and supply
shortages, environmental risk, variouss uninsured or uninsurable risks, government regulations, fiuctuations in Interest
rates, unemployment, inflation, local recessions or other economic events. These risks, either individually or in
combination may cause either a reduction in the income or an increase in operaling and other costs, which may
materially affect the financial position and returns of specific Fund invesimenls and the Fund generally.

3.21. Acquisltion Risks

Acquisitions of real estale investments indude risks that investments may nol perform in accordance with
expectations and that anticipated costs of improvements to bring an acquired properly up to ihe standards
eslablished for the market position Intended for that property may exceed budgeted amounts, as well as general
investment risks associated with any new real eslate invesiment.

3.2.2,  Abort Costs

The nature of real estate acquisilions and disposals may mean that considerable expense may be incurred without
the completion of an acquisition, disposal, financing or leasing of a real estale propery. For example, the Fund may
incur costs on undentaking due diligence and obialning environmental and other reports in relation to potentiat
acquisilions that do not proceed. In addition, conditions precedent may not be salisfied and transaclions may be
aborted after malerial expense has been incurred. All such expenses will be payable by the Fund and will reduce the
returns thal would olherwise be received by an investor.

3.2,3. Insurance Risks

The Fund intends to maintain comprehensive insurance on its real estale property, including physical loss or
damage, business interruption and public flability in amounts sufficient to permit replacement in the event of a tolal
loss, subject to applicable deduclibles and availability of insurance on commerclally reasonable terms and condilions.
The Fund will endeavor to oblain coverage of the lype and in the amount customarily oblained by owners of
properlies similar to its real eslate properly. There are certain lypes of losses, howaver, generally of a catastrophic
nature, such as earthquakes, floods and hurdcanes and lerrorism thal may be uninsurable or not economically
insurable. Inflation, changes In building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations, provisions in loan
documents, encumbering properties that have been pledged as collateral for loans, and other faclors might make it
economically impractical to use insurance proceeds to feplace a property if it is damaged or destroyed. Under such
clrcumstances the insurance proceads received by the Fund, if any, might not be adequate to restore the Fund's
investment with respect to the affected property,
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3 Risks and uncertainties {continued}

3.2.4. Property Taxes

Real estate property owned by the Fund is likely (o be subject to properly taxes whan acquiring and during ownership
of that asset in the country that the assel is held. Such laxes may increase as lax rates change and as the properlies
are assessed or reassessed by taxation aulhorities. Also refer to lhe information set out under the heading “Taxation”
in this section and Section; “Tax Status”,

3.2.6. Environment Liability

The Fund may be liable for the costs of removal or remedialion of hazardous or toxic substances located on orin a
property investment held by the Fund, The costs of any required remediation or removal of such substances may be
substantial. The presence of such substances, or the failure to remediate such substances properly, may also
adversely affect the owner's ability to sell ar lease the property or {o borrow using the property as collaterat, Laws and
regulations may also impose liabilily for the release of certain materials into the air or water {rom a property, Including
ashestos, and such release can form the basis for liabilily to third parsons for personal injury or other damages. Other
laws and regulations can limit the development of and impose liabilily for the dislurbance of wetlands or the habitals
of threalened or endangered species.

Generally, the Fund will oblain environmental audits prior to the acquisition of properies to identify polential sources
of contamination for which such properdies may be responsible and to assess the stalus of environmental regulatory
compliance. There can be no assurance, however, that such audits will reveal all environmental liabllities relating to
an acquired property.

3.2.6. Financial Condition of Tenants

A tenant of acquired properties may experience, from lime to ime, a downturn in its business which may weaken its
financial conditions and result in the failure to make rental payments when due. No assurance can be given that
fenants will continue to make rental payments in a imely manner. The failure of tenants to meel rental obligations on
the Fund's assets may adversely atfect the Fund's operating cash flow and value of its investments,

3.2.7. Use of Valuations and Appralsals

The Fund uses internal and external valuations in several contexis for determining an investment's market value, the
Fund's Net Asset Value and Net Asset Value per share. Each of the Fund's real eslate properties are valued by a
qualified Independent Valuer externally at least once every twelve (12} months as al the end of each financial year
and in addition: investmenls may be valued externally before any acquisilion or sale allhough a new valualion is not
necessary if the sale of the property takes place within six (6) months after the last valuation thereof. An appraisal or
a valuation is only an astimate of value and is not a precise measure of realisable value,

Ultimate realisation of the market value of a real estate asset depends to a great extent on economic and other
condilions beyond the contro! of the General Parlner, respeclively the investment Manager. Further, appraised or
otherwise determined values do not necessarily represent lhe price at which a real estate investment would sold
since markel prices of real estale investments can only be determined by negotiations between a willing buyer and
seller, Generally, appraisals wilt consider the financlal aspects of a property; market {ransactions and the relative
yield for an assel measured against allernalive invesliments. Generally, valuations will be based on the discounted
cash flows of the Fund's assels, but the income capitalization or replacement cost method may also be used provided
that they resull in an adequate valuation. If the Fund is lo acquire or liquidate a particular reat estate investment, the
realised value may be more than or tess than the appraised value or other valualion of such assel.

3.2.8, liquidity of investments

Although the Fund may, on occaston, acquire securities that trade publicly or that are issued by companies lhat have
another class of securties that trade publicly, it is unlikely that there will be a public market for many of the
inveslments held by the Fund. The direct, non-securitized real estate investments that will be held by the Fund will
ordinarily require a substanlial period of time to be liquidated in an orderly manner, There can be no assurance that
there will be a ready market for each type of lhe Fund's reat eslale properiies at lhe lime it may be necessary to
dispose of the same. There are substantial cosls associated with the disposition of such investments, including, inter
alia, sales brokerage and legal costs.

3,2.9, Limited Market for investor interestsfrestrictions on fransfer of Shares

While the Investor will have the right to transfer his Shares to another parly provided such party is a Well-Informed
Invastar and subject to certain other restrictions either pursuant to applicable laws, the articles of assoclation or
olherwise, there is not expected to be a liquid, secondary trading market for the Fund's Shares. For these reasons,
the Investor will be required lo bear the financial risks of their inveslment untit redemplion.
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3 Risks and uncertainties (continued)

3.210. Currency risk

Investments of the Fund may be made in olher currencies than the Euro and therefore be subject lo currency
fluctualions which affect the Net Asset Value of the Fund as defined in section 9 (Net Asset Value) of the Prospeclus.
Currencies of certaln countiies may be volalile and fherefore may affect the value of securities denominated in such
currencies, which means that the Fund's Net Asset Value could decline as a result of changes in the exchange rates
between foreign currencies and the Euro. As delailed in the investment policy of the Fund, the currency risk will be
mostly hedged, but there is no guarantee that the hedging will be successfully achieved,

3.2.11, Untimely Exits due to Redemptions

The ability of the Investor to redeem his Shares is described in the Prospectus and surmmarized in the section
“Redemption of Shares® below. Where redemplions are permitted, the Investor will be entitled o such redemptions as
soon as is praclicable in all the circumstances. However redemption requests will be satisfied in any event within
three years of the request being made. Accordingly, this may mean that the Generat Pariner may be forced to sell or
encumber assels belonging to the Fund earier than ptanned and on lerms and subject to condilions thal are worse
than planned or under market value to satisfy such redemption requests, and such aclion may negatively impact on
the performance of the Fund. For the avoidance of doubt, redemptions will be done at the Nel Assel Value at the time
of the most recent Valuation Day and not at the time the redemplion request is received.

3.212, Reliance on real estate manager

The Fund's success will depend largely on the services of its officers, employees and agents, and, in parl, on the
conlinuing abitity of the involved parties to hire and retain knowledgeable persannel. There can be no assurance that
the General Partner, respeclively the Investment Manager will be able to retain the employees who may be critical to
the performance of ils obligations or o implement successiully the sirategies thal the Fund intends to pursue. There
can also be no assurance lhat the slrategies thal the General Partner wishes to pursue in this regard will result in a
profit for the Fund.

3.2.13. Newly Formed Entity

The Fund is a “société d'investissement” 4 capilal variable. There can be no assurance thal the General Pariner,
respactively the Invesiment Manager will achieve the Fund's investment objeclive notwithstanding the performance of
any or all of the foregoing or their sespective alfiliates or principals in other lransactions Inctuding. wilhout limitation,
arrangements similar in nature to the Fund. Given the faclors as described in this section, there exists a possibility
that an investor could suffer a subslantial or tolal loss as a result of an investment in The Fund,

3.2.14. Use of Laverage

The Fund may incur mortgage and olher debt {subject to cerlain fimils as oullined in the Prospeclus and the articles
of association) to finance lhe acquisition of properties, restructure exisling debt, enhance returns and for other
operational cash flow requirements. Market fluctuations may decrease the availabilily and increase the c¢ost of debt
finance.

The use of leverage increases the exposure of investmenis to adverse econemic factors such as rising interest rales,
economic downlurns or delerioralions in the condilion of a real eslale investment or ils markel If a real eslate
investment is unable to generate sufficient cash flow to meet principal and interest payments on its indebtedness, the
vatue of the Fund's aquily investments in such real estate could be reduced or even eliminated.

3.2.15. Interest Rate and Hedglng Risks

The Fund's performance may be affected adversely if it fails to limil the effects of changes in interest rates on its
operalions by employing an effective hedging strategy, including engaging in interest rale swaps, caps, floors and
other interest rate conlracts, and buying and selling interest rates futures and oplions on such fulures. Should the
Fund so elect (and it wilt be under no obligation to do so), the use of Ihese derivalive instrumenls to hedge a portfolio
of Investmenls carries certain risks, including the risks that losses on any hedge position will reduce its earnings and
the proceeds available for distribution to the Investor, and indeed, that such losses may exceed the amount invested
in such derivative Instruments. There 15 no perfect hedge for any investment, and a hedge may no! perform its
intended purpose of offsetling losses on a given Investment.

3.2.16. Distributions

The Fund depends on payments it receives from its subsidiaries, properlies or other investments held directly in order
lo make dislributions to the Investor. The timing of and the abilily of certain Subsidiarfes to make payments may be
limiled by applicable law and regulations.
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3 Risks and uncertainties {continued)

3.217. Conflicts of Interest

The corporale relationships between the Fund, the enlity at the origin of the Fund, the General Partner, the
Investment Manager, the [nvestment Advisor and heir respeclive affiliates may present conflicls of interest regarding
fhe structuring of transaclions, the terms of the investments and other services provided to the Fund by any of its
service providers. For example, unless otherwise disclosed in this Prospeclus, any such parly may promote, manage,
advise, sponsor or be otherwise involved in further collective investiment schemes. in particular, there cauld arise
conflicts relating to the allocation of investment opportunilies between the Fund and other clients of each of these
pariies. The Fund interds to continue to pursue \ransactions even where conflict exists. While the General Partner
will take steps lo alleviate such conflicls of interests, such conflicts will riot be eliminated.

In the evenl thal the General Partner and the Invesiment Manager of the Invesiment Advisor or any of its officers or
employees or Board members or Investment Commiilee members has In any transaclion of the Fund an interest
different from the interests of the Fund, such entity/person shall make known to the General Partner and the
Investment Manager such confiict of interest in accordance with Luxembourg law and shall not conclude such
transaction and such manager's or officer's interest therein shall be reported o the next meeling of the Board of
Directors of the General Parlner and the Investment Manager. No such instances were reported during 2014,

3.2.18. Lack of diversification

The Fund may diversify ils porifolio by investing in one or more real estate properly types in accordance with its
investment and operaling ciiteria, however, subject to lhese limils, invesiments by the Fund may be weighted 1o
certain properly lypes and in certain geographic markets and there can be no guarantees as lo the diversification of
the Fund's assels. Events that impact a specific Fund investment, a specific properly type held by the Fund or a
region in which the Fund has assels may have a material impact on the Fund's performance.

3,2.19. Recourse to the Fund's Assets

As a Specialized Invesiment Fund, the Fund is reserved to Well Informad Investors who must be aware of the risks
attaching to the investment in an underlaking for collective investment invesling in real estate such as the Fund and
accept that they will have recourse only to the Fund's assels as these will exisi at any lime,

The Fund's assels, including any investmenls made by the Fund and any funds held by the Fund, are available to
satisfy all liabifilies and other obligations of the Fund. If the Fund {as opposed to a subsidiary) becomes subject to a
liability, parties seeking to have the liability salisfied may have recourse to the Fund's assets generally and may not
be limited to any particular asset, such as the asset representing the investment giving rise to the liability. il a
subsidiary {as opposed to the Fund) becomes subject to a liability, parties seeking to have the jiability satisfied may
only have recourse to that particutar subsidiary’s assels generally.

3.2.20. Investments in Partnerships and Other Entitles

The Fund may make investmenls in other entities and enter into parinerships or joint venlures with any person
{including the General Parlner and its affiliates) afler ensuring that it can realise the investments within an appropriate
period of time and it is in the Fund’s besl interests to do so. The Fund may co-invest and the assets in relation thereto
may not be as liquid as the assets direclly held by the Fund in the absence of such co-investment. Generally
co-investment will be made at the level of the jointly held subsidiary holding the asset (also referred to above as the
properly companies). Such investments may involve fisks nol present in direct property investment, including for
example, the possibility that a co-venture of partner of the partnership might become bankrupt, or may at any lime
have economic or business interesls or goals that are inconsistent with those of the Fund, or that such co-ventures of
partners may be in a posilion to take aclion contrary 1o the Fund's investment objeclives. In addition, the Fund may
be liable for actions of ils co-ventures or partners. White the General Pariner, respectively the Investment Manager
and ail other invoived parties will take all reasonable steps to review lhe qualificalions and previous experience of any
proposed co-ventures or pariners, it doas nol expect in all cases to obiain financial information from, or to undertake
private investigations with respect to, prospeciive co-venlures of partners.

3.2.21, Increased Competition

The Fund will engage in @ business thal becomes increasingly compelitive as more investors enter the markel. The
decline in the number or size of assets being offered for sale may adversely affect the Fund's ability to achieve its
investment objeclives. While Whe General Parlner and the Investment Manager believe thal altraclive investments of
the type in which the Fund intends to invest are currently available, there can be no assurance that such Investment
opporiunities will be available or that then available investments will meet the Fund's investment and aperaling
criteria.
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3 Risks and uncertainties (continuec)

3.2.22, Taxatlen

An investment in the Fund involves a number of complex lax considerations including taxation of subsidiaries and of
distrbulions and dividends paid across nalional boundaries. Changes in tax legislalion In any of the countries in
which {he Fund will have investments, or changes in tax trealies negoliated by those countries, could adversely affect
the returns from the Fund to the Investor. No assurance can be given on the actual leve! of taxalion suffered by the
Fund. The Investor should consult his own tax adviser on the tax implications for them of investing, holding and
disposing of Shares and receiving distributions in respect of Shares in the Fund.

3.2.23. Changes in applicable faw

The Fund musl comply with various fegal requirements, including requirements imposed by the securities laws and
companles’ laws in various jurisdictions, including Luxembourg. Should any of those taws change over the lerm of the
Fund, the legal requirements to which the Fund and the investor may be subject could differ materially from current
requirements,

3.2,24, Monthly Valuation

The Central Administrator calculates the Net Asset Value per share for the purposes of issues and redemptions on
each Regular Valuation Day and Valuation Day prescribed by the nvesiment Manager. The External Valuer perlorms
monthly review of NAV calcutation. In addition, but for information purposes oniy, the Central Administrator may
publish a monthly Nel Asset Value per share on such days as it shall prescribe. For the purposes of this monthly Nel
Assel Value, the Generat Partner will use the most recent available Net Asset Value calculated on a Valualion Day
adjusted to take into account ils estimale of accruals of income and expenses and assets and liabilities since such
Valuation Day up to the prescribed day.

There is an insignificant difference between the NAV calculaled according {o IFRS and INREV guidelinas,
3.3 Risks assoclated with the terms and conditions of the Fund

3.3.1. Limitations on the redemption and transfer of Shares

Prospeciive investors should not invest unless they are prepared to retain their investment until the FundiSub-Fund
may terminate. Investor Shareholders may not be able to redeem their Shares and there will be no aclive secondary
market for the Shares.

No Investor Shareholder may transfer its Shares in the Fund, including the obligalion to meet capital calls, to another
existing or prospeclive investor withoul the wrilten consent of the General Partner. The Investor Shareholder wishing
to transfer interests in the Fund will be responsible for all costs associated wilth any altempled or realised fransfer,

3.3.2.  Hliquidity of the fund's investments
The investments of the Fund generally will be long-term and highly illiquid. As a resull, the Fund vill not have control
over when it will have assets lo distribute,

3.3.3.  Dilution from subsequent closings

investor Shareholders subscribing for Shares in the Fund at Subsequent Closings will panicipale in existing
investments of the Fund, diluting the interest of existing lnvestor Shareholders. Although these New Investor
Shareholders will contribute their prorala Shares of previously made capital calis {plus an additional amount relating
lo the cost of money previously conlribuled by eartier investor Shareholders), there can be no assurance that this
payment will reflect fair value of the Fund's existing investments at the time the new Investor Shareholders subscribe
for Shares in the Fund.

3.3.4.  Serlous consequences for shareholders of thelr own failure to meet a capital call by the fund

Failure lo pay to the Fund any amount required to be paid under a draw down notice is subject to substantial
penalties, over which the General Parlner has significant discretion, including removat of entitlement {o distribitions,
the enlillement lo vole as an Inveslor Shareholder and accrual of interest on unpaid amounts. In the case of a failure
to pay, further sanctions include forced transfer to other Investor Shareholders and redemption by the Fund at a price
equal to seventy five per cent {75 %) of the lesser of funded Commitments and the Net Asset Value of the Shares
which may not be received unlil lhe end of the term of a Fund.

3.3.5.  Fallure by other Investor shareholders to meet a capital call of the fund
Failure by an Investor Shareholder to meet a capilal call could result in the Fund defaulling on a funding obligation to
an invesimant of reduce the number of investments the Fund may make.

3.3.6, Investor shareholders bear the cost of all fees and expenses

In addition lo the General Partner Fees, Investor Shareholders will also pay olher expenses of the Fund including
abort fees, introduction and {ransaction fees, and (hird party advisers' fees. This may resull in a higher expense for
Investor Shareholders than if Investor Shareholders invested directly in the underlying assets of tha Fund,
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3 Risks and uncertainties (continued)

3.3.7. The fund may distribute illiquid securities in kind

The General Partner will have the authority to make in-kind Distrbutions at any time under the condilions provided in
Chapter "Dislribution Policy". Even if the General Partner does nol make such Distibulions during the Fund's term,
certain investments may not be able to be liquidated at the end of the Fund's term, even if extended as permilted by
the Prospectus and Arlicles of Assoctation. In such cases there may be in-kind Distributions by the Fund of interests
in these invesiments to Investor Shargholders, all of which are likely to be highly illiquid. There can be no assurance
thal any tnvestor Shareholder will be able lo dispose of lhese inveslments or thal the value of these investments as
delermined by the General Pariner in connection with the determination of Distribulions will be realised.

3.3.8. Compulsory redemption of shareholder's Shares

The General Partner is entitied 1o redeem the Investor Shareholders’ halding if the General Partner determines in its
sole discrelion that lhe Investor Shareholder is or has become inaligible as an Investor or that the continued
participation of the Investor Shareholder in the Fund may adversely affect the Fund. Such compulsary redemption
may cause the investor Shareholder to realize a malerially lower return than would be the case If the Investor
Shareholder did not suffer a compulsory redamption.

3.4. Gther risks

3.4.41. Hedging instruments may adversely affect overall performance

The Fund and its investments may choose lo engage in transaclions designed lo reduce the risk or to protect the
value of their assels, including securities and currency hedging transactions, These hedging strategies could involve
a variely of derivative transactions, including iransaclions in forward, swap or option contracts or other financial
instruments with similar characteristics, including forward foreign currency exchange conlracts, currency and interest
rate swaps, oplions and short sales {collectively "Hedging Insiruments”). Hedging against a decline in the value of a
portfolic posilion does nol eliminate fuctuations in the values of portfolio positions or prevent losses if the value of
those posiliens decline, but establishes other positions designed to gain from those same developments, thereby
offsetting the decline in the portfolio positions' value. While these lransactions may reduce the risks associated wilh
an investment, the transactions themselves entall risks that are different to those of the investment. The risks posed
by these lransactlons include interest rate risk, market risk, risk that these complex instrumenis and techniques will
not be successfully evaluated, monitored andlor priced, counterparly risk, liquidity risk and leverage risk. Changes In
liquidity may result in significant, rapid and unpredictable changes in lhe prices for derivatives. Thus, while the Fund
and its invesiments may benefil from the use of Hedging investments, unanticipated changes in interest rates,
securilies prices or currency exchange rates may resull in poorer overall performance for the Fund and its
investments than if they had not used those Hedging Instruments,

Moreover, it may not be possitle to hedge against a currency exchange fale, interest rate or public securnily price
fluctuation thal is so widely anticipated that the Fund and its investments are not able lo enter into a hedging
fransaction at a price sufficient to protect them from the decline In the value of the portfolio position anticipated as a
resull of ihe fluctualion. The success of hedging transactions will be subject to the ability to correclly predict
movements in and the direction of currency exchange rales, interest rates and public security prices. In addition, the
degree of correlation between price movements of the instruments used in a hedging strategy and price movements
in the portfolio positions being hedged may vary. Moreover, for a variety of reasans, the Fund and its investments
may not seek to establish a perfect correlation between Hedging Instruments and the portiolio positions being
hedged. This imperfect correlation may prevent the Fund and ils investments from achieving lhe intended hedge or
exposure to risk of loss. The making of short sales exposes the Fund and its investments io tha risk of liability for the
markel value of the security that is sod, which is an untimited risk due to the lack of upper limit on the price to which -
a securily may rise. In addilion, because the Fund may hotd securilies indireclly through underlying investment fund,
there can be no assurance thatl securities necessary to cover a shorl position will be available for purchase in
addition, it is not possible to hedge fully or perfecty against currency fluctuations affecting lhe value of securities
denominated in currencies that different from the Sub-Fund currency because the value of those securiies is likely to
fluctuate as a result of independent factors not related to currency flucluations. Currency hedging instruments may
not be available in certain currencies or may not have a duration that matches the long term nature of the underlying
principal investment. The ability to irade in or exercise oplions may be reslricted in the event that trading in the
underlying securities becomes restricted. In addition, these types of hedge transaclions also limit the opportunily for
gain if the value of the porifolio position should increase.

The successful use of hese hedging strategles depends upon the availability of a liquid market and appropriate
Hedging Instruments and there can be no assurance that the Fund and its Investments will be able to close out a
position when deemed advisable by the Inveslment Manager(s). No assurance can be given thal a liquid market will
exist for any parlicutar futures conlract at any parlicular time. Hedging transaclions also involve addilional costs and
expenses, which may adversely affect the overall performance of the Fund and its investmenis. There can be no
assurance hat lhe Fund and its investments will engage in hedging transactions al any given time or from time lo
time, or that these transactions, if avallable, will be elfective.
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3 Risks and uncertainties {continued)

Where Shares are Issued in classes of more than one currency, the effect of a movement in the reference currency of
ong of the ¢lasses relalive {o another may result in differential levels of invesiment, with the result that a greater
proportion of the Commitment of investors in one class may be called than that of those in the other(s).

3.4.2, Taxrisks
Investments in the Fund may involve tax risk. Investors are strongly advised to consull with their lax advisers lo
determine the nalure of these tax risks, if any.

3.43. Dependence on the Investment Manager(s) relationship

All decisions relating to the general management of the Fund will be made by the General Partner and the decisions
refaiing o the portfolio and risk management by the appointed, then by the Investment Manager or its agents. Al
invesiment decisions with respect to the assels of the Sub-Funds will be taken by the Invesimenl Manager. The
investment performance of the Fund depends largely on the abitily of {he Invesiment Manager.

3.4.4. Eariy liquidation of the Fund

in the event of the Early Liquidation of the Fund, the Fund will distribute lo the Investor Shareholders their pro-rata
interest in the assets of the Fund. The securilies and other interests in other Sub-Funds' investiments will be sold by
lhe Fund or distributed to the Investor Shareholders. It is possible that at the time of such sale or redemption certain
investments held by the Fund may be worth less than the initial cost of the investment, resulling in a loss to the Fund
and to its Investor Sharcholders. Moreover, in the event the Fund liquidates prior to lhe complete amortization of
organizational expenses, any unamortized portion of such expenses will be accelerated and will be debited {and
thereby reduce) amounts otherwise available for Distribution to Investor Sharehotders.

3.5, Actual exposure of the Fund to the price risk, credit risk, Hiquidity and cash flow risk

Actual exposure of the Fund to the price risk, credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk is in more detail described in the
notes to the Group consolidated financial statements {Note 18 - Financial Risk Management).

4  Supplementary Information according to AIFMD
4.1, Remuneration

The [nformation on remuneration paid by the AIFM to its staff according to Art. 22 (2) (e) Direclive 201 461/EU on
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFMD) and Art. 107 Circular Delegated Regufalion {CDR) is made available
to the invastors on request to the AIFM at the Fund registered olffice.

4.2, Material Changes in the information listed in articfe 23 AIFMD

4.24.  Article 23 (1}b: Information on procedures - the Fund may change its Invesiment strategy or investment
policy

The General Partner remains with full authority to determine the investment policy of the Fund as set out in the

Prospeclus. The General Partner may at any time keep the investment policy implemented by the AIFM under

review. The General Partner has a veto right over all investment and divestment decisions o be taken by the AIFM.

The General Partner will exercise such right in the best interest of the Fund.

4.2.2,  Arlicle 23 (1)d: Information on Alternative Investment Fund Manager of the Fund

The Fund qualifies as an Alternative Invesiment Fund in accordance with articte 1 (39} of the Luxembourgish Law of
12 July 2013 (AIFM Law). In order to comply with the AIFM Law the Fund has appointed Luxembourg Investment
Solutions S.A. {LIS) as Allernalive Invesiment Fund Manager.

LIS is a management company authorized by the Luxembourg financial services supervisory authority, Commission
de Surveillance du Secleur Financier {CSSF) to exercise the aclivity as an Alternative Investment Fund Manager in
accordance wilh Chapler 2 of the AIFM Law.,

The duties of the AIFM are described in more detail in the Prospecius of the Fund, last updated in July 2014,

LIS’s has its registered office al 8, rue Heienhaff, L-1736 Senningerberg, Luxembourg. For contacting LIS please visit
hip:/iwww.investment-solutions. tuf or dial +352 263 456-1

4.2.3.  Article 23 (1)d: Information on the Depository of the Fund

The Fund has appointed CITCO Bank Nederland N.V. Luxembourg Branch as ils depository in accordance with
article 19 AlFM Law. The Fund has amended the Deposilory Agreement between CITCO Bank Nederlands N.V. and
itself to include the new requirements on the depository function according to AIFM Law.

The dutles of the Depositery are described in more detail in the Prospeclus of the Fund, fast updated in July 2014,
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4 Supplementary information according to AIFMD (continued)

4.2.4.  Article 23 (1}d: Information on the External Valuer of the Fund
The TPA Honwarth Valuation Services s.r.0. has been appointed as the Fund's External Valuer to perform the valuation
function in accordance with article 17 AIFM Law.

The dulies of the External Valuer are described in more detaif in Ihe Prospectus of the Fund, last updated in July 2014

4.2.5. Article 23 {1)e: Information on the compliance with article 9 (7) AIFMD: coverage of potential
professional lability risks

(1S maintains own funds and a professional indemnity insurance to cover potential professional liability risks arising

from professional negligence; togelher, the own funds and the professional indemnily insurance are sufficient to

cover said risks of LIS.

4.2.6. Article 23 (1): Information on delegated functions
LIS, as AIFM of the Fund is performing the risk management and the porifolio management funetion for the Fund
without any delegates.

The Depository of the Fund has not delegated any safekeeping dulies as regards to the assets of the Fund held in
custody by the depository. The Depository has the right lo delegate ils functions relating fo the safekeeping of
Financial Instruments and the verification of ownership and the maintenance of a record with respect to Other Assets
under the conditions provided in Art, 19 (11) AIFM law.

4.27. Article 23 (1)g: Information on valuation procedures and pricing methodolagy

TPA Horwath Valuation Services s.r.o., having ils registered office at Manesova 917/28, 120 00 Prague 2,
Czech Republic, registered with the Commercial Register of Ihe Metropolian Court in Prague, section G, under
number 151055, has been appointed by the Fund and the AIFM as an Exteral Valuer. The External Valuer will
perform the valuation function for the Fund in accordance with Article 17{4) of the Luxembourg AfFM taw (2013 law).

For each net asset value calculation of the Fund, the External Valuer will assess the change In fair value of the
investment properties to be applied in the calcutation. In case of a considerable change in the value is anticipaled, an
Independen! Valuation of the investment properties by an Independant Appraiser would be initiated to updale lhe
Fund's real eslate assels valuation reports. The AIFM and the External Valuer are jointly maintaining a valuation
policy and procedures lo ensure proper valuation of Fund's assets.

As to the valuation of the investment properly assels of the Fund, there are no changes to valuation methaodology.
The investment properties are valued at falr value, eslimated on the income capilalization melhed, applying the
discounted cash flow technique. Furlher information is provided in the Nole 2.4 of the consolidated financial
statements.

4,28, Article 23 {1)h: Information on liguidity risk management, including the redemption rights
As of December 2014 the AIFM is overseeing the liquidity risk management of the Fund,

The AIFM employs appropriate liquidily management methods and adopts procedures which enable it to monitor the
liquidily risk of the Fund. The AIFM ensures that the invastment and financing strategy, the liquidity profile, the
distribution policy and the redemption policy are consistent with the Fund's tiquidily needs.

Wilh the latest amendment of the Prospectus in July 2014, the Fund ctarified the redemption rights of investors and
modified the redemption rights as loflows:

After the Initial Lock-in Period (from 31 May 2014), Investor Shares are redeemable upon witlen notice to the
General Parlier (-‘Redemption Notice’) no laler than sixty (60} calendar days following the Fublication Day of Net
Assel Value as defined below. For the avoidance of doubt, the redemption window starts on 1 Apnl and ends on
31 May each calendar year ("Redemption Cut-Off Date’).

In case that the aggregale amount to be redeenied by the Shareholders is lower than three per cent (3 %) of the
Net Assel Value as of the Redemplion Cul-Off Date, the Sub-Fund will repuirchase the Shares no laler than
hundred fifty (150) calendar days following the applicable Publication Day of Net Asset Value as defined balow.

i case thal the aggregate amoun! o be redeemed by the Sharcholders is higher than three par cent (3 %) of the
Nel Asset Value as of the Redemption Cut-Off Date but fower than twenly per cent (20 %) of the Net assel Value
as of the Redempiion Cut-Off Dale, the Sul-fundd will repurchass the Shares no later than nine (9) calendar
monihs and sixly (60) calendar days following the appiicable Publication Day of Nel Assel Value as defined below.
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in case fhat the aggregale amoun! fo he redeemed by the Shareholders during the last fourteen {14)
months is higher than twenly per cenl (20 %) of the Net Assel Value as of he applicable Redemplion
Cul-Off Dale, the General Parner will have the righ! to liquidate the Sub-Fund and pay the received
amouis lo the Shareholders no later than threa (3) years and sixly (60) calendar days following the
applicable Publication Day of Net Assel Value, or the Sub-Fund may repurchase lhie Shares no lafer than
twelve (12) calendar months and sixty (60} cafendar days foliowing the applicable Publication Day of Net
Assel Value as defined below.

The redsmplion price per Investor Share shalf be equal to the Net Assel Value per Investor Share last
available as of the date of aclual redemplion (whether of all or part of redeemable Investor Shares). In any
case, such redemplion nol being performed with a Nel Assel Value earlier than as of the Redemplion
Cul-Off Dale. Following the receipl of the Redemption Nolice, the General Pariner delermines in its own and
sole discrolion the effactive day al which the Investor Shares. whelher wholly or pariially, will be
repurchased for the Redemplion Price by lhve Sub-Fund in accordance with the applicable lime periods for
redemplion described above.

The Investor Shares will be repurchased proportionally in relation to the portion of the Investor Shares of
each Shareholder to the total amount of Shares lo be redesmed within an applicable lime period specified
above. The Sub-Fund will repurchase the applicable portion of Investor Shares offginaling from each
Shareholdar for the equal and then applicable Redemplion Frice, each time the actual repurchass lakes
place, whether of all or of part of the Investor Shares will be repurchased in one or more occasions.”

A Nolice has been senl to the investors over the changss.

4.2.8.  Article 23 (1)i: Informalion on fees, charges, expenses

The remuneration of the Investment Manager is calculaled on a quarterly basis with a minimum annual fee of
EUR 50,000. The calculation is based on the Fund's NAV. If the Fund's NAV is lower than EUR 100 million,
remuneration equals to 0,08% of NAV. if the Fund’'s NAV is higher than EUR 100 milion and lower than
EUR 200 million, remuneration equals to 0,07% of NAV. If the Fund's NAV is higher than EUR 200 million,
remuneration equals to 0,06% of NAV.

There is an addilional fee due in case of nolification of the Fund 1o the local authoritias for dislibution purposes: per
counlry EUR 2,000,

4.2.10. Article 23 {1}j: Information on fair treatment of Investors

The Invesiment Manager has established a conflict of interest policy for the Fund ensuring a fair treatment of
Investors. As prescribed by the Policy the Investment Manager mainlains a Conflict of Interest Matrix, which
describes any actual or potential conflict of interest arising and how such is managead.

4.211.  Article 23 (1)I: information on the procedure and conditions for the issue and sale of units or Shares
According to the AIFM law the Investment Manager needs to file with the CSSF a notification letter and acquire the
aulhorities” approvat for each cauntry where the Shares of the Fund are lo be diskibuted. The distribution prior
nolification is not allowed. As of 31 December 2014 the approval of the CSSF have been received for the following
{hree countries: Slovak Republic, Czech Republic and Austria.

4.3, Risk Management

In accordance with Article 21(4) and (5) of the AIFM Law, as complemenled by Arlicles 108 and 109 of Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 of 19 Dacember 2012, allernative investment fund managers are required to
provide inveslors with certain informalion in addition to the information which they recelve pursuant to the Prospectus
of the Fund. The form, nalure, and complexity of the information provided herein may vary in future reports in
accordance with fegistative and regulatory requirements. LIS in ils capacity as the AIFM of the Fund has established
a risk management function that is functionally and hierarchically separate from its operaling units and implements,
stubjecl to conlinuous fmprovements and regular {at feast annual} review, adequale risk management systems In
order (o identify, measure, manage, and monitor appropriately all risks relevan! 1o the Fund invesiment stralegy and
to which the Fund is or may be exposed.
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‘The relevant exlrzcl from Lhe Investment Manager's reporl on principat fisks and uncerlainties faced by the Fund
during the reporiing period and the miligating measures employed reads as follows:

Risk category

Maln tisks

Management and Mitigation

MARKET RISK Changes in macra- and The Invesiment Advisor conducts a thorough pre-
micro- economic investment due diligence and rsk analysis prior lo
enviranment impact the each investmen!, Besldes financlal faclors, non-
value of lhe porifolio assels financial faclors (e.g. repulation, quatity of

management and operalional faclors) are taken into
consideration

The underlying Invesiment portfolio is well-diversified
The AIFM analyses regutarly kay performance and risk
indicators of the undedlylng assels

LIQUIDITY RISK Liquidily shorl-fall refaling The fiquidity fisk of the Fund is limited given thal the
to redemplions redemplion rights of investors are restricted as

specified in the Fund documents

The AIFM manages the residual risk origlnating from
cedemption rights by employing appropriate liquidity
management melhods and adopting precedures,
which enable it to monitor the Rguidily risk of the Fund

CREDIT RISK/ Loss incurred due lo lhe The AIFM monitors the credit sisk exposure regulardy

COUNTERPARTY failure of an obligor to meet The Fund uses bank guarantees, financial deposils

RISK his conteactuat obligalions and other collateral as means of mitigation credit risk

where possible

VALUATION RISK Missing NAV reporting The AIFM performs a due diligence on the valuation
deadiing or repoiting of process in order lo ensure Independent and faif
erroneous NAV due {o not vatuation resvlls
timely receipt of dala for The AIFM has implemented a review process on the
NAV calculation reported values of the assets In order to perform an

appropriale level of plausibility checks

OPERATIONAL RISK + Payment The AIFM has implemented a corporate calendar

fiowinsteuclions not The AIFM is periorming delegation monitoring on
correctly executed oulsaurced functions regularly

«  Missing reporting The AIFM has implemented policies, operaling
deadiines manuals, sound procedures and several fayers of
(investorsiregulator) controls
due to missing dala or
inadequale schedule

s T disruplion

COMPLIANGE RISK Non-compliance with The AIFM has implemented a carporate calendar
Luxembourg fund The AIFM has a dedicaled compliance function and Is
regulations, PPM, LPA and monitoring on an on-going basis fegal and regulatary
other {egal documenls developmenls

The AIFM checks polential transactions wilh respect to
compliance with regulalions 3 fund documentation

EXCHANGE RATE FX risk between assels in The AIFM does not consider foreign exchanga risk to

RISK foreign curiency and the

fund's base cuirency

be a significant exposure to the Group's operalions as
all ransaclions are denominated in EUR

5 Review of developments, position and gerfermance of the Fund's buslness

There were no acquisitions and disposals of the investment property of the Fund.

The portfolio of the Fund consists of & invasiment properties; each of them Is held through a separate SPV in which

the Fund holds 100%:

caci-i

.- * & 2+ *

Aupark Piesl'any
Logislické centrum Maly Saris
Logistické cenlrum Svaly Jur

Union building

11
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5 Roview of davelopmenty, position and pesferinonce of the Fund's buslness (conlinvad)

Tho Fund's cagilal growth thiough its lnvestments |s measured by changes fn a¢l assols allibulablo to Shoreho'ders
{'nct assels’). At At Decomber 2014, tho Fund's net pssots emouvnt to EUR 61,9 mitien {2013: CUR 59.6 mllifon)
representng 116.4%% (2013: 113.4%) of capltal fn vso, This increaso is the nel offect of Shercholdars' capital
subscilptions during the yeor 2011 of EUR 52,4 1nifien, e decreasa in the propadies’ falr value by EUR 1.4 mitien
(2013: decronse by EUR 1,0 mition), Uio rentol and operating ncome reatized during the yeor of EUR 13.7 miiliien
(2013: EUR 13.6 mithion), tho admipdsteation ond running expenses of EUR 1.5 millen {2033 EUR 1.4 mitlon), tho
projecis’ finante relolcd oxpenses of EUR 3.3 mitlon (2013 BUR 3.5 million) ond telated development and
pdmialslation expenses of BUR 2.0 mitien (2013: EUR 2.2 miliion}.

& Fuluro developments

The Fund plaas to cantinue lis lavastment projiam tn 2014 fnvosting In the Canlr2! Curepean region,

7 Evenls alter tho dote of tho sialenient of flnenclal position

Mo mallers of circwmstoncas of Inpoitance havo arisen siacy the end of tha finonclat yeal vibich hava significantly

olfested or may oignificantly offect thie aperotions of tho Fund,
Forpad o betall of the Generst Padaer acting in s ownnaine bil for Iho nccovst of the Fund
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Audit report

To the Shareholders of
HE Reavis Real Estate SICAV-5IF

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of HB Reavis Real Estate SICAV-SIT,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 3t December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in net assets
attributable to the holders of shares and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Responsibility of the Board of Managers of the General Partner for the consolidated financial
statements

'Fhe Board of Managers of the General Partner is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as the Board of Managers
of the Ceneral Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

yy

Responsibility of the "Réviseur d'entreprises agréé

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing as adopted for
TLuxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier”. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the
“Réviseur d'enlreprises agréé” including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the “Réviseur d’entreprises agréé” considers internal contral relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circiunstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Managers of the
General Partner, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

. . . . . . . 3 . v v . ’

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopdrative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B.P. 1443, L-1014 Luvembourg
T 1352 404848 1, 54352 494948 2000, wrww. el

Cabinet de révision agréé. Expert-comptable (autorisation gouvernementale n*10028256)
R.C.S. Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518




Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidaled
financial position of HB Reavis Real Estate SICAV-SIF as of 31 December 2014, and jts financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union,

Other matter

Supplementary information included in the consolidated financial slalements has been reviewed in the
context of our mandate but has not been subject 10 specific audit procedures carried out in accordance
with the standards described above. Consequently, we express no opinion on such informaltion.
However, we have no observation to make concerning such information in the context of the
consolidated finaneial statements taken as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative Luxembourg, 31 March 2015
Represented by

Isabelle Dauvergne
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HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Consalldated Staleineat of Financlo! Position at 31 Decermber 2014 prepared In accordonce

with International Financial Roperting Stondards bs adoplted by tho EU 15
. 31 Decembor 31 Decamber
{nmiliions ! EUR , Hoto 2014 2013
ASSETS
Hen-curiend assols
Inveatment property Inuin o0 vatant 4 1€63.0 164.9
Olhor pon cuient 0350ty 9 23 1.9
Yelal non.eurrent aysels 1661 1660
Cugeont osscls
Tragdo ond vther aecelvables 19 26 23
Cash ond cah equivalents it 48 58
Total current assels 7.5 8.0
TOTAL ASSETS 173.6 1748
LIABILITIES
Nen-current Habllities
Boroulngs 12 £3.2 101.0
Dolorred Income tox kabiiy 17 1.2 049
TraZe ond olher paysbled 13 24 2.3
Total noh-turront liabliftics 101.8 1048
Curront liabltites
Boeran'ngs 12 +.7 4.6
Tradoand olnerpayabios 13 52 58
Tolat eument ubliities LAY 104
Tolal [lablfities {excluding Hel Assels atiriautable to Lhe foldees of Shates) 1117 1153
Het Assels altrlbutable 1o the holdets of Shares 619 53.5

TOTAL LABILITIES 1734 i74.8

SIF an 31 Mareh 2035 by B memders of o Boord of Mojagers of tha Genem! Pariner of tho HB ASAVIS REAL ESYATE SICAY-SIF.

Nuse consetidated Laanzat statements haveg boen op::rw;d for ksuo and s'gned on boha!| of the HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-.
od fmancial stalenonts offer issuo,

The Sharehaldes have the powerto anend those consobdal
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"fﬂé-aégd':'np;rn;i's;;in&;éﬁ pages 191047 ato Entc-g—fiﬂl part of thaso consolidated financial stalements.
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Consolidated Statemen! of Gomprehengive Income for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared In

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 16
In mitfions of EUR Note 2014 2013
Rental and simllzr income from investiment properties 14 13.7 134
Direcl operating expenses arising from investment properly, 15 (1.6) {1.6)
ot oparating income from investment proparlios 124 11.8
Revalvation gainf{loss} eninvesiment properties 9 {1.4} (1.0}
Olher operaling income &b - 0.2
Qlher operaling expenses 16 (1.5) {4
Oparaling profiV {loss} 9.2 9.6
Interesl expense 3.3) (3.4)
Other finance costs - (0.1)
Finance costs, not {3.3} (3.5)
Profitf{foss) beforo income tax 5.9 6.1
Cumrent income (ax (expense)credit 17 {0.1) .
Delerred income {ax (expense)credil i7 (0.3} {0.6}
Income tax (exponso)leredit {0.4} {0.6)
Net profit/{loss} for tho year 5.5 55
Other comprehensive income
Total comprohensive [ncome/(loss) 55 5.5
Mot profitifloss) is attribuiable to:
- Owners of the Fund 55 5.5
- Non conlrolling interesl . .
Profit/loss} for the year 5.5 5.5
Total comprohonsive incomel{loss) is atiributable to;
- Qvmera of the Fund 5.5 6.5
- Non-Conlrolling Intesesl . -
Total comprohonsivo Incomel{loss) 5.5 5.5

The accompanying notes on pages 19 (0 47 are an integral part of these consolidated linancial stalements.




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assels Atiributable to the Holders of Shares for the year ended

31 December 2014
Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 17

Aftributable to the holdars of Shares

Share
capital Retained
In millions of EUR Note {Nota 6) eamings Total
Balance at 1 January 2013 52.4 4.7 67,1
Profit for tha year / Total comprehensive income for the year - 5.5 6.5
Dividends declared and paid . 7 - (3.1) (3.1}
Batance at 31 December 2013 52.4 7.4 §9.5
Profit for lhe year / Total comprehensive income for the year - 5.5 55
Redemption of Shares 6 (0.1} - {0.1)
Dividends declared and paid 7 - (3.0 {3.0)
52.3 9.6 61.9

Batance at 31 Dacember 2014

The accompanying notes on pages 19 lo 47 are an Integral part of these consotidated financial statements.




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2014
Propared in accordance with International Financlal Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 18

In millions of EUR Note 2014 2013

Cash flows from operaling activities

Profit/{Loss) belore income lax 59 8.1
Adjustments tor:

Revaluation (Galns}l.osses on nvestment properdy 9 1.4 1.0
Inlerest expense 33 a4
Operaling cash flows before working capital changes 0.6 10.5
Working capilal changes:

{Increase) in frade and olher receivables 0.9 04
{Decrease Yincrease in trade and other payables (0.4) 0.1
Cash genetated from operalions 93 11.0
Interest paid (3.3} (3.3)
MNet cash from operaling activitios 6.0 7

Cash flows from Investing activities
Conslruction of invesiment propery 9 0.3 (1.5}
Acquisition of subsidiaries, nel of ¢cash acquired

Net cash {used in)/irom investing activities {0.3) (1.5)

Cash flows from financlng activitles

Repayment of boirowings (3.6) (67.6)
Drawdown of borrowings - 64.5
Redemplions 6 (0.1) -
Dividend distributions 7 (3.0 (.
Net cash from/{used in) financing actlvitios (6.7) {6.2)
Net {(decrease) f increase In cash and cash equivalonts (1.0 -
Cash and cash equivalents at (he beginning of the period 59 59
Cash and cash oquivalents at the end of the year 11 4.9 5.8

The accompanying notes on pages 19 to 47 are an integral part of hese consolidaled financial statements.




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Notes to the Consolfidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared in accordance
with International Flnancial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 19

1 The HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group and its Operatlons

These consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopled by the European Union (the “EU"} for the year ended 31 December 2014 for HB Reavis Real Estate SICAV-SIF
(the “Fund’} and its subsidiaries (logether refarred to as the "Group’},

The Fund is an umbrella fund incorporated as a corporate partnership limited by shares (société en commandite par
actions or 5.C.A.) under the laws of Luxembourg, which is registered as an investment company with variable capital
{société d'investissement & capital variable) under the law of 13 February 2007, as amended relating to specialized
invesiment funds {2007 Law) and the law of 10 August 1915 (1915 Law) relaling lo commercial companies. It is also
governed by specific management regulations dated June 2012. The Fund was set up on 25 May 2011 and is registered
at the Luxembourg Commarcial Register under file R.C.S. Luxembourg B 161180,

Furthermore, the Fund is in the scope of the Alternative Investment Fund Management Law of 12 July 2013 (AIFM Law") and
qualifies as an Alternative Investment Fund ("AlF").

The unlimited Generat Parner (associé-gérant commandité) of the Fund is HB Reavis Investment Management Sarl, a
private limited corpany (sociélé 4 responsabilité limitée) incorporated under the faws of Luxembourg.

The General Panner has appointed Luxembourg Investment Solulions SA. to act as invesiment manager ("invesiment
Manager” or *LIS") in accordance with the provisions of the AIFM Law. Luxembourg Investment Solulions S.A. ('LIS”) is a
limited lability compsny organised under the laws of Luxembourg, having its registered office at 5, rue Heienhaff,
L-1738 Senningerberg, Luxembourg and aulhorized by the Luxembourg financial services supervisory authority, Commission
de Surveillance du Secteur Financier {CSSF) to exerclse lhe aclivity as Allernative Invesiment Fund Manager in accordance
with Chapler 2 of the AIFM Law.

The Fund's immediate parent as of the date of issuance of these consclidated financial statements is HBR Investors Lid.
based in Cyprus. The Fund is consolidated under HB Reavis Holding S.a r.l., a company based in Luxembourg.
HB Reavis Holding S.a r.l. is ultimately controlied by Mr, Ivan Chrenko.

The Fund offers its Shares 1o well-informed investors mainly from lhe Eurozone as defined by the Luxembourg regulation
concerning specialized investment funds dated 13 February 2007, as amended.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on 31 March 2015. The shareholders have the power
to amend the consolidated financial statements after issue.

Principal activity. Real estate investments and investment in SPVs holding real eslate assels, including controlling and
non-controlling slakes in SPV holding companies. The Fund is designed as a mulli-compartment struclure consisting
currently of one Sub-Fund HB Reavis CE REIF (the “Sub-Fund™). While there are no specific country or real estale
segment restriclions posed, the Sub-Fund will mainly invest in Slovakia, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary in
cemmercial real estate assels.

The initial Sub-Fund portfolio provides invesimenls In prime properlies only located in Slovakia., The office segment
investments are restricled to A-class properties localed in central business dislricts of capital and regional cities in
Stovakia, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary. The retait segment invesiments will be made in both capital and
regional cilies of Slovakia, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary, Investments in fogistic properties will be restricted
{o atractive and strategic localions only.

The Sub-Fund seeks lo maximize the value via investing in properlies which in the past proved (o bear characteristics of
a prime-commercial real eslate properly which as such implies to have a lop-tier tenants porifolio being located in prime
of slralegic locations and soundly buili from both technical and architectonical point of view. The Sub-Fund seeks to
enhance value of properties by contracting an excellent [ease management in arder to maximize propsrly income,

Investment restrictions of the Sub-Fund:

a) Invesimenl targets: The Fund focuses on investing In finished, fully or nearly fully let commerctal properlies with
stable cash flow. Only rental income generating assets are eligible for the Fund's porifolio, A property to be acquired
has 1o exhibit al laast eighly parcent (80%) of leased area of the total gross leasable area. The acquisition form is to
be either freehold or leasehold with not less than thirty (30) years to elapse. The Fund may acquire properties
directly or indirectly via 8PV andfor share of SPV, as well as via forward purchase of an 8PV or a direct property.
The maximum age of an office or logistic real eslate asset shall, as of the date of acquisition of such an asset, be no
grealer than seven (7) years.

b) Development and redevelopment: The Sub-Fund does In general nol invest in any redevelopment of real estate
assets which it acquires. The General Partner may however decide lo redevelop to the condition that the
redevelopment has no significant impact on cash flow of the fund within three {3} years following the investment.

¢} Denomination: The Sub-Fund is denominaled in Euro,




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared in accordance
with International Financlal Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 20

4] The HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group and its Operations {Continued)

d} Investment restrctions of the Sub-Fund: The Sub-Fund may not have an exposure on one (1) real eslate
investment, which would exceed thity percent (30%) of ils gross assets. This thirly percent (30 %) rute does not
apply during a start-up phase of four (4) years after the initial Closing Date. The Sub-Fund intends to hold liguidity
only to the extent needed to meet short- and mid-term liabilities. The liquidity will be held in bank accounts, lime
deposils, monay markel instruments, investnient grade rated bonds and/or olher lype of near-cash investments.

e} Losn and leverage: A ratlo of consolidated external debt over tolal real estate assets (‘leverage”) shall no! exceed
70%. essentially through bank financing. Leverage incurred by the Sub-Fund or one (1) of ils subsidiaries for an
individual assel may exceed 70% of the individual asset value, bul shall not at any event exceed 75% of such value.

In addition, the Sub-Fund on the accounl of the Sub-Fund may borrow up to 10% of the lota) assels to finance ils
working capitat requirements against uncalled Commitments, Given the idea of a core product and the type of
Investments set out above, the Sub-Fund's largel real eslate investments aim al relatively tow yields with limiled
risk. This makes an exlended leverage both desired and necessary.

f) Indirect propery investmenls via bonds or similar financial instruments: As a rule, lhe investmenls of the Sub-Fund
are made directly or via spacial purpose proparty companies, in which the Sub-Fund shall have centrolling or non-
conlteolling (minority) paricipations. In case of investments with controlling participations, the Fund will, to the extent
possible, seek to have majorily representalion. The Sub-Fund may invest secondarily in other assets such as money
market inslruments and investment grade rated bonds and cash.

Reglstered address and place of business, The Fund's registered address and principal place of business is:

20, rue de la Poste
L-2346 Luxembourg
Luxembourg

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are described
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless olherwise staled.

24 Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance. These consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (\iFRS") as adopted by the European Union. The Group applies all IFRS
standards and inlerpretations issued by Internationat Accounling Standards Board (hereinafter “JASE’), which were in
force as of 31 December 2014,

income and cash flow statements. The Group has elected {o present a single staterment of comprehensive incoma and
presents ils expenses by nalure.

The Group reports cash flows from operaling aclivilies using the indirect method. Interest received and inlerest paid is
presented within operaling cash flows. The acquisitions of investiment properlies are disclosed as cash flows from
Investing aclivities because this most approprialely reflects the Group's business activities.

Preparation of the consolitfated financial statements. These consolidaled financial slatements are presented in
millions of Euro ("EUR") rounded to one decimal place, unless olherwise slaled.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, applying the historical cosl
convention, except for the measurament of investment property at fair value,

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounling estimates. It also requires management 1o exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Changes in assumplions may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial slatemenls in
the period the assumptions changed. Management balieves that the underlying assumplicns are appropriate. The areas
involving higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estimates are significant o tha
consolidated financial stalements are disclosed in Note 3,




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared in accordance
with International Financlal Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 21

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows models or models based on recent arm's length lransaclions or
consideration of financial data of the counterparties are used to falr value certain financial inslruments for which external
market pricing informalion is not available. Valuation techniques may require assumptions not supporled by observable
market data. Disclosures are made in these consolidated financial statements if changing any such assumptions o a
reasonably possible alternative would result in significantly different revaluation gain or loss on investmant properties, net
profit or toss for the year, {otal assels or totat liabilities.

2.2  Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statements. In preparing the consolidaled financial stalements, the individual financial
statemenis of the consolidated entities are aggregated on a line-hy-line basis by adding together the like ilems of assets,
liabilities, equily, income and expenses. Transactions, balances, income and expenses between the consolidated entities
are eliminated. The individual {inancial slatements of the consclidaled entilies are prepared on a consolidaled basis
when they hold subsidiaries.

The management has assessed whether the Fund meets the criteria for being an investment enlity as defined in IFRS
10. Had the Fund been considered an investmenl enlily, the Fund would have accounted for its investment into
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or toss, When doing this assessment, the Management has considered whether
the Fund meets lhe cteria defined in IFRS 10.27 which are:

- obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with investment management
services;

- commils to ils inveslor(s) that ils business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
Investrment income, or both, and,

- measures and evaluales the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Even lhough Ihe two first criteria are met, the parformance of the Fund, the management of the Fund and of the portfolio
are measured using various performance indicators such as IRR, capitalisation rate, compliance with debt covenants,
tenant quality/profile, property tocalion, dividends yields, occupation rate, net income generaled from properties, etc..
Therefore, Management concluded that the third crilerion is not met and the Fund is not an investmenl entity. The
consglidated financial statements of the Fund prepared in accordance with IFRS include all the subsidiaries listed
hereafter.

Subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those investees, including structured enlilies, lhat the Group conlrols because the
Group {i} has power to direct relevant aclivilies of the inveslees lhat significantiy affect thelr relurns, (i) has exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investees, and (ili} has the ability to use its power over the
investees to affect the amount of inveslor's relums. The exislence and effect of substantive rights, including substantive
potential voting fights, are considered when assessing whether the Group has powar over another entily. For a right lo
be substantive, the holder must have praclicat ability to exercise that right when decislons aboul the direction of the
relavant activities of the investee need o be made. The Group may have power over an investee even when il holds less
than majority of voling power in an investee. In such a case, the Group assesses the size of its voting rights relalive to
the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders to determine if it has de-faclo power over the investee.
Protective rights of othar investors, such as those that retale to fundamental changes of investee's activities or apply only
in exceptional circumslances, do not prevent the Group from controlling an investee. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from he date on which controt is transferred to the Group, and are deconsolidated from the date on which control
ceases.

Accounting for business combinations under IFRS 3 only applies if il is considered that a business has been acquired.
The Group may invest in subsidiaries that hold properties but do nol constitute a business. These transaclions are
therefore treated as asset acquisitions rather than business combinations. Under IFRS 3, 'Business combinalions’, a
business is defined as an inlegraled set of aclivities and assets conducted and managed for he purpose of providing a
return to investors or jower costs or other economic benefits directly and propertionately to policyholders or parlicipants.
A business generally consists of inputs, processes applied to those inpuls, and resulting outputs that are, or will be, used
to generale revenues. If goodwill is present in a lransferred set of aclivities and assets, the transferred set is presumed
to be a business.

For acquisitions meeting the definition of a business, the acquisition method of accounting s used. The consideration
\ransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is {he falr value of the assels transferred, Lhe liabifities incurred to the
former ovmers of the acquiree and the equily inlerests issued by the Group. The consideralion fransferred includes the
{alr vatue of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, idenlifiable assels acquired and
liabitities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition dale. The Group recognises any non-controliing interest in the acquiree on an acquisilion - by acquisition
basis, eilher at fair valug or at the non-conlrolling interest’'s propertionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree's
identifiable net assets.




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 22

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Acquisition-refated costs in relation to business combinalions are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in slages, the acquisilion dale fair value of the acquirer's previously held equily
interest In the acquiree is temeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideralion to be transferred by the group is recognised al fair value at the acquisition date,
Subsequent changes to Ihe fair value of the conlingent consideration thal is deemed lo be an assel or liability is
recognised in accordance with 1AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration thatis classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent selllement is accounted for within equily.

Goodwilt is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideralion transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assels acquired and liabilities assumed. I this consideralion is lower than the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions with non-controfling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equily transactions
that is, as {ransaclions with the owners in their capacily as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assels of the subsidiary Is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlfling interests are also recorded in equily.

For acquisitions of subsldiaries not meeting the definition of a business, the Group allocates the cost between the
individual identifiable assets and liabililies in lhe Group based on lheir relative fair values at the dale of acquisition.

Such transactions or evenls do not give rise io goodwill.

All the group companies have 31 December as their year end. Consolidated financial statemenls are prepared using
uniform accounling policies for like transactions. Accounting policles of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

intercompany transaclions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminatad;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be recovered,

Disposals of subsidiaries. When the Group ceases to have control any retained interest in the entily is premeasured to
its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or foss. The fair value is Ihe initia! carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associale, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity is accounled for as if
the Group had direclly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
olher comprehensive income are recycled to profit or loss.

The enlilles Included within these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Functionat Countryof 31 December 3t Dacoember
currency fncorporation 2014 2013
Numbeor Subsidlaries

1 HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF (Parent Company) EUR Luxembourg NIA NIA
2 HBRCEREIF1UX18ar) EUR Liuxembourg 100 100
3 HBR CE REIF LUX 2S.ark EUR Luxembourg 100 100
4 AUPARK Piedfany SC, 5. 1. 0, EUR Slovakia 100 100
5 AUPARK Plestany, spol. s r.0. EUR Slovakia 160 100
] UNE-CCs.r. o, EUR Slovakia 100 100
7 Logistické Cenlrum Svily Jur s.c.o. EUR Slovakia 100 100
8 {Logistické centrum Maly Sarns, spol. s r. 0. EUR Slovakia 160 100
9 CBCl-lla. s, EUR Slovakia 00 100

2.3 Forelgn Currency Transactions and Translation

Functional and presentation currency

items included In the financial slatemenls of each of the Group's entilies are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency’). The functional currency of all Group's
enlilies is the focal currency. The consolidated financial slatements are presented in millions of euro (ELIR), which is the
Group's presentation currency.




HB REAVIS REAL ESTATE SICAV-SIF Group
Notas to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 prepared In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 23

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency ransactions are translatad into the funclional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the settlement of such transactions and from the
transfalion at year end exchange rates of monetary assels and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are
recognized in the Consolidated Statemert of Comprehensive Income.

Translalion differences on non-monetary assets and Habilities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
the Consolidated Slatement of Comprehensive Income as parl of the fair value gain or loss.

24  Investment Property

Investment property is property held by the Group to earn rental income or for capital apprecialion, or both and which is
nol occupled by the Group. Investment properly includes assels under construction for future use as investment
property.

Investment property comprises of freehold land, freehold commercial preperties (retail, office and logistics) and fand plols
held under operaling and finance leases. Land plots hefd under operating lease are classified and accounted for as
investment properly when the definition of investment properly is met. The operating leases are accounted for as if they
were finance leases.

investment properly is inifially valued atl historical cost including relaled transaction costs. Costs include lhe works
performed, the costs of stalf directly retated to technical supervision and project management on the basis of time spant
up to the date of completion.

After initial recognition at cost the Invesiment property, including properly under construction or development for future
use as invesiment property, is carried at fair value, Fair value of investment properly is the price at which the properly
could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an armm's length transaction, without deduction of any
transaclion costs.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If this information s not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recenl
prices on fess active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Valualion reporis are prepared as of lhe financial
position date by independent appraisers, who hold a recognized and relevant professional qualification and who have
recant experiance in valuation of properly of similar location and category. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the market has become less aclive continues lo be
measured al fair value.

The fair value of investment properly reflects, among other things, rental income from current feases and assumptions
about renlal incoma from fulure leases in the light of current markel conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash oulflows thal could be expecled in raspeact of the property. Some of those outilows are recognized as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of fand classified as investment properly; others, including conlingent
rent payments, are not recognized in the consolidated financial stalements. Transaction costs, such as estimated agent's
and legal and accounting fees and transfer taxes are nol deducted for the purposes of valuation of invesiment properly in
these consolidated financial statements irrespeclive whether or not they form par of the described valualions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outfiows that could be expecied in respect of the propedy. Some
of those oulilows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of leaseho!d land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the consofidated financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditures are capilalised to the assel's carrying amount only when it is probable that fulure economic
benefits associated wilh these expendilures will flow lo the Group and the cost of the ilem can be measured refiably. All
olher repairs and maintenance cosls are expensed to the consofidated income statement during the financial perlod in
which they are incurred. When parl of an invesiment properly is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part Is
derecognised.

The fair value of invesiment properly does not reflect fulure capital expenditure that will improve or enhance the property
and does not reflect the refated fulure benefits from this future expenditure other than those a rational market participant
would take inlo account when determining the value of the property.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated income slatement under “Revaluation gain/(loss} on investment
praperties”. Invesiment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Where the Group disposes of a properly at fair value in an arm's lenglh transaction, the carrying value immediately prior
lo the sale is adjusted to the kansaclion price, and the adjusiment is recorded in Lhe income slalement vathin net gain
from fair value adjustment on investment property.

If an item of properly, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulling between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transler is recognized in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment under 1AS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gainis recognized in the Gonsolidated Statement of Comprehansive Income.

If an Investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as propesty, plant and equipment, and ils fair value
al the date of reclassification hecomes ils cosl for accounting purposes. Peoperly thal is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property Is classified as investment property and stated at fair value,

Where an investment properly undergoes a change in use evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale, the property Is transferred lo inventories. A property’s deemed cost for subsegquent accounting as inventories is its
fair value at the date of change in use.

Borrowing costs: The Group does nol capilalise borrowing costs inta cost of qualifying assels (investment) that are
carried at fair value.

2.5 Financial Instruments

Financial assels

Financial assels are classified as financlal assets al fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-lo maturity financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group delermines the
classification of its financial assets at inltial recognilion. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly atlibutable {ransaction cosls.

Financial assels are derecognised only when the contraclual rights to the cash flows from the financal asset expire or
the Group transfers substanliatly all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group's financial assels consist of loans and receivables.

Financial assels recognised in the Consolidated Slatement of Financial Positton as trade and other receivables are
classified as loans and receivables. They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost less provision for impairment,

Cash and cash equlvalents are also classified as loans and receivables. They are subsequenlly measured at amorlised
cost. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or fess,

If the Group revises its eslimate of payments or receipls, the Group adjusls the cariying amount of the rental guarantee
1o reflect the aclual and revised eslimated cash flows. The carrying amount is recalculated by computing the present
value of eslimated future cash flows at the financlal instrument's original effeclive interest rate. The adjustment is
recognised in income stalement as finance incoma or expense.

The Group assesses al each financial position dale whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset o group of
financlal assels is impaired. If there is objeclive evidence (such as significant financial dilficulty of the obligor, breach of
contract, or it becomes probable hat the deblor will enter banksupicy), the assel is tested for impairment. The amount of
the loss is measured as the difference betwaen the assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated fulure
cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assel's
original effeclive Interest rale (thal is, the effective interest rate computed al Inilial recognition). The carrying amount of
tha assel is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in income statement,

In relation to lrade receivables, a provision for impalrment is made when lhere is objeclive evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficullies of the debtor} that the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of lhe invoice. Impaired debls are derecognised vien thay are assessed as
uncolfectible.

Ifin a subsequent period the amount of the impairnent loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment {085 is reversed, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed ils amorlised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised in income slatement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Financial liabifilies
Liabifilies within the scope of {AS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other
liabilities, as appropiiate.

A financial liabilily is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelted or expires.

All loans and borrowings are classified as other liabilities. Initial recognition is at falr value less directly altributable
transaclion costs. After inilial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequertly measured al
amortised cost using the effective interest melhod (see Note 2.11 for the accounting policy on Borrowings).

Financial liabilities included in lrade and other payables are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently at
amorlised cost. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is ils discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the
liabitily is less than one year, discounting is omitted,

26 Leases

fAS 17 defines a lease as being an agreemeni whereby the lessor conveys fo the lessee In relurn for a payment, or
series of payments, the right lo use the asset for an agreed period of lime, The subsidiaries of the Fund are lessors of
operaling leases.

Properties leased outl under operating leases are shown under investment properly heading in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position (Note 9). See Nole 2.14 for the Palictes on recognition of Revenue Recognition.

2.7 Income Taxes

Income {axes have been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with applicable legislation
enacled or substantively enacted by the financial position date and on enfity by enlily basis. The income tax charge
comprises cuirent tax and deferred tax and is recognised in the income statement unless it relates to transactions that
are recognised, in the same or a different period, direclly in equily or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the amount expected (o be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable profilts or
losses for the current and prior periods. Taxes olher than on income are recorded within operating expenses.

Oeferred income 1ax is provided using the balance sheet fiability method for tax loss carnry forward and temporary
differences arising belween lhe tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puiposes. In accordance with tha initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are nol recorded for temporary differences
on initial recognilion of an asset or a liability in a iransaclion other than a business combination if the transaction, when
initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred tax balances are measured at tox rates
enacted by law or substantively enacted at the financial position date and are expected to apply to the period when the
temporary differences will reverse or the {ax losses carmry forward will be wlilised. Deferred tax assets for deductible
temporary differences and lax loss carry forwards are recorded only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductions can be ulilised.

The carrying value of Group's investment property is assumed o be realised by sale at the end of use. The deferred tax
is then calculated based on the respeclive temporary differences and tax considerations arising from recovery through
sale.

Deferred income lax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of {he lemporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is possible that the temporary difference will
nol reverse in the foreseeable fulure.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offsel when there s a legatly enforceable right to offset current lax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate 10 income taxes levied by the
same taxation authorily on either the same laxable entity or different {axable entilies where there is an intention to settle
{he batances on asset basis.

28  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits and cash overdrafis held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three monlhs or less,
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.9  Share Capltal and Share Premium

Ordinary Shares are classified as equily. Incremental costs directly altribulable to the issue of new Shares are shown in
equily as a deduction, net of lax, from the proceeds. Any excess of lhe fair value of consideralion received over
the par value of Shares issued is presented in the notes as a share premium.

2,10 Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the reporting dale only if they are declared before or
on the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are preposed belfore the reporting dale or proposed or dectared
after the reporling date but before the consclidaled financial slatemenls are authorised for issue,

211 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially al fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, After initial recognition, borrowings are
carried at amortised cosl using the effeclive interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemptlion value is recognised as finance cost using the effeclive interest method, The Group does not
capitalise interesl relaled lo qualifying assels that are carried at fair value, including investmenl properties. Accordingly,
interest costs on borrowings are expensed as incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer setiiement of the
liability for atieast 12 months after the date of the statement of {inancial position.

212 Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables are accrued when the counterparly performed its obligations under the contract. Trade payables are
recognised initially at falr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using {he effective interest method.

2,13 Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

Provisions for fiabilities and charges are recognised when the Group has a presenl legal or conslruclive abligation as a
resull of past events, it is probable that an oulfiow of resources will be required to sellle the obligation and a reliable
eslimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected lo be required to seltle the obligation using a
pre-tax rate that reflecls current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase In the proviston due 1o the passage of lime is recognised as finance cost.

214 Revenue Recognition

Revenue includes rental income, service charges and management charges from properties.

Rental income is recognised on a siralght-ling basis over lhe fease term. When the Group provides incentives o ils
tenants, the cost of Incentives is recognised over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as a reduction of rental income.
This applies to discounted rent periods, indexalion and stepped rents. The conlingent payments under fease agreaments
depending on agreed level of sales turnover of tenants are recognized as income in the period when earned because the
Group is unable to reliably estimate the future sales turnover of {enants in order to be able to recognise such expected
contingent rents on a straight line basis over the lease term,

Service and management charges are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. When the
Group is acling as an agent, the commission rather than gross income is recorded as revenue,

2.16 Other operating expenses

Expenses Include legal, accounting, auditing and other lees. They are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred (on an accruals basis),

2.16 Comparative balances

In 2014, in order to comply with fAS 32 section 16A and 16B, the Group has changed lhe presentation of the Net Assels
Allributable fo the Holders of Shares which were previously presented as part of Group Equity o Group Liability.
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3 Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes eslimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's experlence and other
factors, including expectations of fulure evenls that are believed to be reasonable under lhe circumstances.
Management also makes cestain judgements, aparl from lhose involving eslimalions, in the process of applying the
accounting pelicies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the ameunts recognised in the consolidaled
financlal stalements and estimates that can cause a significant adjusiment lo the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year include:

Valuation of investment properties. The fair value estimates of all of investment properties were determined by the
Group having received valualion advice from an International valuation company which has experience in valuing
properties of similar location and characteristics. Due to the nature of the propelies and lack of comparable markel data,
{he fair value of investment propedies is eslimated based on the income capitalisation method, where the value is
estimated using discounted cash flow (‘DCF"} projections based on significant assumplions.

The principal assumptions underlying the estimalion of the fair value are those related to: the recelpt of contractual
rentals; expected future markel rentals; void periods; mainlenance requirements; appropriale discount rates. These
vatualions are regularly compared o aclual market data and actual Wansactions by the Group and those reporled by the
markel.

The Group management and the valuation experls have applied thelr judgment when assessing the fair values of the
properties,

The principal assumplions made, and lhe impact on the aggrepate valuations of reasonably possible changes in these
assumplions, are as follows:

» Rental charges per square meter and month have been calcufated for each property on a basis of actually contracted
and prevailing marke! rales as estimated by the qualified valuer. Should the rental levels increase or decrease by
10% the fair value of investment properly would be higher of lower by EUR 16.4 million (2013: EUR 16.5 million).

s The exil yield across lhe portiolic was assumed lo be from 7.20% to 9.00% (2013: from 7.25% to 9.26%), or 8.04%
{2013; 8.1%) on average, Should this capitalisalion rale Increase / decrease by 25 basis points, the carrying value of
the investment property woutd be EUR 5.3 million (2013: EUR 5.3 million) lowerfhigher,

Income taxes The Group is subject o income taxes in different jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining Ihe provision for income laxes. The Group recognizes liabilities for anlicipaled tax audit issues based on
estimates of whelher additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax oulcome of these matlers is different from the
amounts thal were inilially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determinalion is made.
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4 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

The following new standards and interpretations became effective for the Group from 1 January 2014:

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (issued in May 2011 and effective In the EU for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014), teplaces all of the guidance on conliol and consolidation in IAS 27
“Consolidated and separate financial statements” and SIC-12 “Consolidalion - special purpose enlities”. IFRS 10
changes the definition of conlro! so that ihe same criteria are applied to all entities to determine control. This definilion is
supported by extensive application guidance. The standard did not have a materiat impact on the consofidated financiat
statements of the Group.

IFRS 11, Jolnt Arrangements, {Issued In May 2011 and effective in the EU for annual perlods beglnning on or
after 1 January 2014), replaces IAS 31 "Interests in Joint Ventures™ and SIC-13 "Jointly Controlled Entities-—Non-
Monetary Contributions by Ventures”. Changes in the definitions have reduced the number of types of joint arrangements
lo two: joint operations and joint ventures. The existing poticy choice of proportionate consalidation for jolntly controlled
entilies has heen eliminated. Equity accounting is mandalory for participants In joint venlures. The standard did not have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest In Other Entities, {ssued in May 2011 and effective in the EU for annual perlods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014), applies to entilies that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an
assoclate or an unconsolidated structured entity. IFRS 12 sels oul the required disclosures for entilies reporting under
the two new standards: IERS 10, Consolidated financial statoments, and IFRS 11, Joinl arrangemnents, and replaces the
disclosure requirerents currently found in 1AS 28, Investments in associates. IFRS 12 requires enlilies to disclose
information thal helps financia! statement readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the
enlity's inlerests in subsidiaries, associales, joint arrangements and uncensolidated slruclured entities. To mest thase
objectives, the new standard requires disclosures in a number of areas, including significant judgments and assumptions
made in determining wheather an enlity controls, jointly controls, or significantly influences ils interests in other entilies,
extended disclosures on share of non-conlrolling interests in group aclivities and cash flows, summarised financial
information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests, and detaited disclosures of interests in unconsolidaled
struclured entities. The standard did not have a material impact on {he consolidated financlal slalements of the Group.

“Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Investment entities” {issued on 31 October 2012 and effective for
annual perfods beginning 1 January 2014). The amendment introduced a definition of an investment enlily as an
entity that {i} obtains funds from investors for the purpose of providing them wilh investment management servicas,
(i) commils to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for capilal appreciation or investment
income and (jiiy measuras and evaluales its investments on a fair value basis. An investment entily is required 1o account
for its subsidiaries al fair vaiue through profit or loss, and 1o consolidate only those subsidiaries that provide services that
are related to the entity's invesiment aclivities. IFRS 12 was amendad to introduce new disclosures, including any
significant judgements made in determining whether an entity is an investment entily and information about financial or
other support to an unconsolidaled subsidiary, whether inlended or already provided o the subsidiary. The amended
standard did not have a malerial impact on the consolidated financiat stalements of the Group {refer lo Note 2.2).

IFRIC 21, Levies (Issued on 20 May 2013 and effective In the EU for annual periods beginning on or after 17 June
2014, that Is, from 1 January 2015 for the Group). The interpretation clarifies the accounting for an obligation to pay a
levy that is not income tax. The obligating event that gives rise to a liability is the evenl identified by lhe legislation that
triggers the obligation to pay the levy. The fact that an entity is economically compelled to conltinue operaling in a future
period, or prepares its financial slatements under the going concern assumption, does not create an obligation. The
same fecognition principles apply in interim and annuval financial statements. The application of the interpretation to
liabitities arising from emissions trading schemes is optional. The interpretation is not expected to have any malerial
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
did not have materiat impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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5 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new standards and interprelations have been issued that are mandatory for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015 or later, and which the Group has not early adopted.

The following new slandards and their amendments have nol yet bean endorsed by the European Union:

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 8 was issued in July 2014. Il replaces the guidance in 1AS 39 that
relates lo lhe classificaion and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS @ retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and eslablishes three primary measurement categories for financial assels: amoriised cost, fair
value through OCI and fair value through P&L. The basis of classificalion depends on the enlity's business mode! and
the contractual cash flow characleristics of the financial asset. Investments in equily instruments are required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss wilh the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in
OCI not recycling. There is now a new expecled credit losses mode! lhat replaces the incurred loss impalirment mode!
used in IAS 39. For financial labilities there were no changes to classification and measurement except for lthe
recognition of changes in own credit risk in olher comprehensive income, for liabilittes designated al fair value through
profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge effecliveness
tests. it requires an economic refationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument and for the *hedged ratio' to
be the same as lhe one management actually use for risk management purposes. Contemporaneous documentation is
still required but is different to that currently prepared under IAS 39. The standard is effective for accounling periods
heginning on or after 1 January 2018, Early adoplion is permilted. The group is yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact.

IFRS 15, Reveniue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 28 May 2014 and effective for the periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017). The new standard introduces the core principle that revenue must be
recognised when the goods or services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled goods or
services that are distinct must be separately recognised, and any discounls or rebates on the contracl price must
generally be aliocated 1o the separate elements. When the consideration varies for any reason, minimum amounis must
be recognised if they are not al significant risk of reversal, Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be
capitalised and amorlised over the period when the benefits of the contract are consumed. The Group is currently
assessing lhe impact of the new standard on its consolidated financhal statements.
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6 Share Capltal

Shares are exclusively restricted o Eligible Inveslors as defined by the 2007 Law, as amended,

The Share Capital of the Fund shatl be represented by the following classes of Shares in compliance with the Arlicles of
Incorporation and the Olffering memorandum of the Fund:

- Managerment Share (share of Unlimited Shareholder) of EUR 1,000, with no par value and fully paid up;

- Investor Shares {share of Limited Shareholder} at an initial value of EUR 1,000, with no par value and fully paid up.

The Shares are redeemable Shares and can be redeemed since 31 May 2014 at lhe Shareholder's request for cash
equal to a propertionate share of the Fund's net asset value and are carried at lhe redemption amount that is payable at
the end of the reporting period.

The Fund's net asset value per unit s calculated by dividing the net assets allibutable to the holders of each class of
redeamable Shares with the tolal number of outstanding redeemable Shares for each respective class,

The relevant movemenls are shown on the stalement of changes in net assets attributable lo the helders of Shares:

At 31 December 2014, the number of Shares was as foliows;

Number of Shares Managemont Class Investor Class Total
As at 31 December 2013 1.000 51,891.875 51,802,875
Rodemption of Sharos - {115.15) {116.15)
As at 31 December 2014 1.000 51,776,725 54,7771.125
At 31 December 2013, the number of Shares was as follows;

Number of Shares Management Class Invastor Class Total
As at 31 December 2013 1.000 51,801,875 51,892,875

Nel assels value as of 31 December 2014 was EUR 61,929,256.12 {as of 31 December 2013: EUR 59,481,674.74)
which is EUR 1,196.06 (2013: EUR 1,146.24) per share.

7 Distributions Payable

Diskribution of dividends is described below.
There was no directors’ remuneration in the year.

The total authorised number of ordinary Shares is 31 Shares at an initial vatue of EUR 1,000 with no par value and fully
paid up.

The terms of external borrowings drawn by the Group impose certain limitations on the abilily of the subsidiaries to pay
dividends. These limitations are typicaily linked to financial covenants such as debl service coverage ratio or loan lo
value ratio.

Dividends declared and paid during the year ware as follows:

In mitlions of EUR 2014 2013
Dividends payable at 1 January - -
Dividends declared during the year 3.0 31
Dividends paid during lhe year (3.0} (3.1}

Dividends payable at 31 Decombor - .

Par share dividends declared and paid during the yearin EUR 57.94 59.74
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8 Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

Related parlies are defined in IAS 24, Relaled Party bisclosures. Parlies are generally considered to be related Iif one
parly has the ability lo control ihe other party or can exercise significant influence or joint controt over the other party in
making financlal and operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, altention is direcled

to the substance of the relalionship, not merely the legal form. The Fund's immediate parent is disclosed in Note 1.

Key management of the Group consists of 3 senior managers, one of which is a non-execulive director. Short-term
bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which management rendered the related

sefvices.

The nature of the retated pardy relationships for those related parties with whom the Group entered into significant

transactions or had significant balances outstanding at 31 December 2014 are delailed below.

Al 31 December 2014, the outstanding balances with related parlies were as follows.

In millions of EUR Total
Trade and other receivables - current 0.3
Loans and receivables ¢1
Trade and other payables - current {0.4}
Accrued expenses - management fee {Note 13) {i.1)
Accrued expenses — performance fee (Nole 13) -
At 31 December 2013, the oulstending balances with related pariies were as follows:

in millions of EUR Total
Trade and olher receivables - current 0.4
Loans and receivables 0.1
Trade and other payables - current {1.6)
Accrued expenses ~ management lee (Nole 13) (0.3}
Accrued expenses - performance fee {(Note 13) -
The income and expense items wilh related parlies for the year ended 31 December 2014 were as follows:

Iy miflions of EUR Total
Revenue from service rendered 0.4
Other services (1.3}
Qther income (0.1}
Managemenl fee (Note 16} (1.1}
Performance fee {Note 16} -

The income and expense items with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2013 were as follows:

In mitlions of EUR Total
Ravenue lrom service rendered 0.4
Olher services (0.8)
Other income - Reimbursement of ren! of land plot 0.1
Management fee (Note 16) (1.0}

Perormance fee (Nole 16)
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8 Balances and Transactions with Related Parlles (Continued)

a) General Partner fee

The Fund is managed by HB Reavis Invesiment Management S.a rl, an investment management company
incorporaled in Luxembourg {the General Partner). Under the lerms of the Prospectus of the Fund daled June 2012, the
Fund appointed HB Reavis Investment Management 8.4 r.l. as an Investment Manager to provide management services
to the Fund. HB Reavis Invesiment Management S.4 r.L. receives a fee of 1.65% per annum by calculating the average
of the Net asset Value during the previous 3 months and to be paid on a quarterly basis in arrears. The lotal fees for the
year ended 31 Dacember 2014 amounled to EUR 1,008,236 {2013 EUR 972,633) with EUR 1,067,366 {2013:
EUR 269,130} outstanding to HB Reavis nvestment Management S.A .l at year end.

h) Invesiment Manager Fee

The remuneration of the Investment Manager is calculated on quarteily basis with a minimum annual fee of EUR 50,000,
The calculation is based on the Fund's NAV. If the Fund's NAV is lower than EUR 100 million, remuneration equals to
0,08% of NAV. If the Fund's NAV is higher than EUR 100 million and lower than EUR 200 million, remuneration equals to
0.07% of NAV. If the Fund's NAV is higher than EUR 200 million, remuneration equals to 0,06% of NAV,

The total fees for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to EUR 30,041.10.

¢} Performance fees
The General Parlner, HB Reavis Investment Management S.a r.l, is enfitled to a performance fee calculated on an
annual basis on the total retuin per share during each petiormance period. it Is calculated as follows;
i Up to 9% the General Partner is not entitled lo collect any performance fee, and
ii. Between 9% and 12%, the General Partner is entitled lo collect a performance fee equal to 30% of the
difference between the aclua! tolal relum and 9% multiplied by the Net Asset Value per share at the
beginning of tha performance period multiplied by the number of Shares outstanding al the beginning of the
parformance period, and
jill Between 12% and 15%, the General Pariner is entitied to collect a performance fee equal to 60% of the
difference belween the actual tolal retuin and 12% (plus 30% of the difference between 12% and 9%)
multiplled by the Net Asset Value per share al the beginning of the performance period multiplied by the
number of Shares outslanding at the beginning of the performance period, and
iv. More than 15%,the General Partner is entilled to collect a parformance fee equal 1o 90% of the difference
between the lolal return and 15% (plus 60% of the dilference between 15% and 12% plus 30% of the
difference between 12% and 9%) multiplied by the Net Assel Value per share at the beginning of lhe
performance period multiplied by the number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the performance
period.

The total return per share for the performance period shall be calculated net after deduction of all costs and regular fees.
The Management decided to waive the Annualized performance fee for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 in
full,

d) Depository fees

The Fund has engaged the services of Citco Bank Nederland N.V.- Luxembourg Branch to provide custodian services
for a fee. Custody fees will be charged quarterly al a rale of 0.02% per annum of the Assels, vith a minimum fee of
EUR 40,000 per year. In addition a transaction fee of EUR 1,200 will be charged for any acquisition ar disposal of real
eslale assels. The total fees for the period amounted to EUR 41,300 {2013: EUR 38,100) with EUR 20,700 (2013
EUR 10,300) outstanding to Citco Bank Nederland N.V.- Luxembourg Branch al year end.

e) Domiclliary agent, Registrar and Transfer Agent and Administrative Agent fees

‘The Fund has engaged the Central Administrator services of Citco REIF Services (Luxembourg) S.A., a company incorporated
in Luxermbourg, lo provide administration services for a fee. The lolal feas lor the period amounted to EUR 143.710.43
(2013: EUR 119,836.08} with EUR 26,956.70 (2013: EUR 30,922.85) outstanding to Cilco REIF Services {Luxembourg) S.A.
alyearend.

f} External Valuer fees
The fees of the External Valuer depend on the hours spent on the performance of the valuation funclion. Tha total feas
for the year ended 31 December 2044 amounted to EUR 17,229.80.

g) Related Parly Shareholdings
Parlles are generally considered (o be refated if one party has the ability lo control the other parly or exercise joint control
or significant influence over the other parly in making financial and operating decisions.
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8 Balances and Transactlons with Related Parties (Continugd)

Related pariies of the Fund hold the following Shares at 31 Dacember 2014

Number of Shares at tho Disposals of Numbor of Shares

Shareholder Class beginning of the period Shares at year end
HBR Investors Lid. investor 28,296.063 (8,631.998) 16,764.067
HB Reavis Investment Management 8.4 1), Management 1.000 - 1.000
HB Reavis Investment Management S.a r.l. Investeor 1.000 - 1.000
Number of Sharos at 31 December 2014 28,298,063 {8,531.896) 19,766,067

Related parties of the Fund hold he following Shares al 31 December 2013

Number of Shares atthe  Disposals of Number of Sharos

Shareholder Class begtaning of Lthe period Shares at year end
HBR Investors Lid. Inveslor 38,533.585 (10,237.522) 28,296,083
HB Reavis Invesiment Managemenl S.arl.  Management 1.000 - 1.000
HB Reavis Inveslmenl Management S rl.  Investor 1.600 - 1.000
Number of Shares at 31 Dacember 2043 38,535.585 {10,237.522) 28,208,063
9 Investment Properly
2014 2013

In miltions of EUR

Fair value at the baginning of the poriod 164.9 164.4
Addilions — technical enhancement 0.3 1.5
Fair value gains/(losses) (1.4) (1.0}
Fair vatue at 31 Decembaor 163.8 164.9

The investment properties are valued annually on 31 December at fair value, with benefit of advice by an independent,
professionally qualified valuation expert who has recent experience in valuing similar properties in similar locations. The
methods and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair value are described in Notes 2.4 and 3.

Al 31 December 2014, investment properties carried at EUR 163.8 miflien {At 31 December 2013: EUR 164.9 million})
have been pledged to third parlies as coflaleral with respect to borrowings. All properties have been properly Insured for
the total amount of EUR 124.7 million {risk of damage mainly through fire, natural disasters, theft, burglary).

Valuations obtained for investment properly were adjusted for the purpose of the consolidated financlal statements to
avoid double-counling of assets or liabilities that are recognised as separate assets and liabilities. Reconciliation
between the valuations obtained and the adjusted valuation included in the consolidated financial statements is as
follows:

In millions of EUR a1 December 2014 31 December 2013
Valuations obtainesl 166.1 166.8
Less lease incentive receivables {2.3) {1.9)

Fair value at 31 December 163.8 164.9
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10 Trade and Other Receivables

in mitlions of EUR 31 Docember 2014 31 Dagember 2013
Trade receivables due from third parlies 2.5 19
Accrued rental income 0.1 0.1

2.8 20

Cther financial receivables ¢

2.6 2.1

Total trade and othor receivables

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

In millions of EUR 31 Dacember 2014 31 Decomber 2013
EUR 26 21
Total trade and other receivables 2.6 21
Certain {rade recelvables from third parties are collataralised as follows:

In miliions of EUR 31 December 2014 31 Becomber 2013
Trade receivables collateralised by:

- bank guarantees 0.8 0.4
- financial guaranlees 0.7 0.5

1.5 0.9

Total

The Management appttes judgement in delermining classes of assets and groups of financial instruments into classes
thal are appropriate taking into account the characleristics and risks of those financia! inslruments. At minimum,
management distinguishes instumenls measured at amortised cost from those measured at fair value and also treals as
separale classes those financial instruments that are outside the scope of IFRS 7, Financia! Instruments: Disclosures.
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10 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Analysis by credit quality of trade and other receivables as of 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Trado roceivables

including accruad Cther financial

in mitlions of EUR rental incomo receivables Total
Neither pas! due norimpaired — exposure lo

Receivables secured by bank or olher financial guaraniees 0.6 - 0.6

Receivables not secured 0.2 - 0.2

Total current and not impaired 0.8 - 0.8

Overdue bul nol individually impaired

- less than 30 days overdue 1.3 - 1.3
- 30 lo 90 days overdug 0.1 - 0.1

- 90 to 180 days overdue 0.1 - 0.1

- 180 10 360 days overdue 0.1 - 041

- over 360 days overdue 0.2 0.2
Total overdus but net individually impaired 1.8 - 1.8
Total trade and othor recelvablies 2.6 - 2.6

EUR 0.9 million out of EUR 1.8 million of Tolal overdue but not individually impaired Trade and other receivables i3
secured by bank and other linancial guarantees.

Analysis by credit qualily of trade and other receivables as of 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Trade receivables

including aceruod Other financial

in millions of EUR rantal jncome receivables Total
Nelther past due nor impaired — expostre lo

Receivables secured by bank or other financiat guarantees 0.1 - 0.1

Recelivables nel secured 0.3 0.1 0.4
Total current and not impaired 6.4 01 0.6
Overdue bul not individually impaired

- less than 30 days overdue 1.2 - 1.2
- 30 10 90 days overdue - - -
- 90 lo 180 days overdue 0.1 - 0.1

- 180 {0 360 days overdue 0.1 - 0.1

- over 360 days overdue 9.2 0.2
Fotal overdue but not Individually impaired 1.6 - 1.6
Total trade and other receivables 2.0 0.1 2.4

EUR 0.8 million out of EUR 1.6 million of Total overdue but not individually impaired Trade and other receivables was
secured by bank and other financial guaranlees.

Cerain trade receivables are secured by either bank guarantee or deposit. The unsecured trade recelvables are from a
wide variety of tenants and the Group has the ability to evict non-paying lenants.

The carrying amount of lrade and other receivables was nol substantially different from their fair value. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk with respecl to other trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
customers.
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" Cash and Cash Equivalents

in miffions of EUR 31 December 2014 31 Decomber 2013
Cash at bank and In hand 49 59
Total cash and cash aquivalents 4.9 5.9

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, cash and cash equivalents were fully available for the Fund's use.

All the bank batances are neither past due nor impaired. Analysis by credit qualily of bank balances and term deposits is
as follows:

31 December 2014 31 Decomber 2013

In millions of EUR Cash at bank Cash at bank
Rating by the Company

- Banks rated 1 2.3 3.1
- Banks rated 2 0.8 1.9
- Banks unrated 1.8 0.9
Total 4.9 5.9

Nole: The Fund classifies banks hased on ralings as follows:

Banks raled 1: Rating by Moody's A1, A2, A3 or raling by Filch A+, A, A-
Banks rated 2: Rating by Moody's Baa1, Bas2, Baa3 or Fitch 88+, BBB, BBB-

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2014 and 2013 are not substantially different
from their fair value, The maximum exposure to credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is limited by the carrying
value of cash and cash equivalentls,

12 Borrowlngs

31 Docember 31 becembor
in millions of EUR 2014 2013

Non-current
Bank borrowings 98.2 1.9
98.2 101.9

Gurrent

Bank borrowings 4.7 4.6
4.7 4.6
Total berrowings 162.9 105.5

All of the Group's borrowings are deneminaled in EUR. Refer also to Note 18 for further information.
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2 Borrowings {Continued)}

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-cusrent borrowings are set out below:

Carrying amounts Carrying amounts Fair values at Fair values at
In milions of EUR at 31 Decembor 2014 at 31 Decernbor 2013 31 December 2014 31 Decembor 2013
Bank borrovings 98.2 101.9 99.0 105.2
Non-eurcant borrowings 98.2 101.9 99.0 105.2

Assumplions used in detemining falr value of borrowings are described in Nole 18. The carrying values of current
borrowings approximalte their fair vatues.

B Bank horrowings
In mifiions of EUR 34 December 2014 31 Decomber 2013
Current 4.7 4.6
Repayable between 1 and 2 years 3.9 39
Repayable belween 2 and 5 years 94.3 98.0
Repayable aver § years - -
98.2 101.9
102.9 106.5

Total hank borrowings

Bank borrowings are bearing variable interest rates and are exposed lo interest rate changes. Please refer to sensitivity
analysis in Note 18.

The Group doesn't have undrawn borrowing facilities,

Invastmenl properties (refer lo Nole 9) are pledged as coltateral for borrowings of EUR 102.9 million {2013: EUR 1086.5 milllcn).
In addition all rade receivables of he 5 project companies are pledged as cotlateral for the borrowings.

The loan agreements wilh third party creditors afe governed by terms and conditions which include maximum joan to value
tatios ranging from 63.25% to 70% (2013: 65% to 70%) and minimum dabl service coverage ratios ranging from 1.15 o 1.2

{2013 1.15101.2}.

During 2014 and 2013 and up lo dale of authorisation of these consolidated financial statemants for Issue, the Group was In
compliance vith all loan agreement terms and no terms of the loans were renagotiated due to defaults.
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13 Trade and Other Payables

In millions of EUR Note 31 Decomber 2014 31 Decomber 2043
Non - current

Olher tong lerm payables! Prepaymenis for rent 24 2.1
Total tradg and other payables ~ non-current 24 24
Current

Trade payablas 1.2 2.5
Accrued liabilities 0.1 0.3
Financial payables due to third parties — current 1.3 2.8
Accrued expenses - management fee 11 0.3
Accrued expanses — performance fee . -
Financiat payables due to related partios — current 8 1.1 (1]
Yotal financlaf payables - current 2.4 31
Deferred income 28 27
Total trade and other payables - current 5.2 6.8
Total trade and other payables 7.6 7.9

Trade payables are denominated in the following foreign currencies:
31 December 2014 31 Decomber 2013

In miltions of EUR

Non ~ current

EUR 2.4 2.1
Curront

EUR 5.2 58
Trade and other payables 7.6 7.9

The fair value of trade and other payables is not significanlly different from their carrying amount.

14 Rental and Similar income from Investment Properties

In mitlions of EUR 2014 2013
Rental income 13.7 i34
Total revenue 13.7 13.4

Where the Group is the lessor, the future minimum lease payments recaivable under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:
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14 Rental and Similar Income from Investment Properties (Continued}
31 Decembeor 31 December
in millions of EUR 2014 2013
Not later Ihan 1 year 1.7 1.7
Laler than 1 year and not fater (han 5 years 291 28.7
L ater than 5 years 7.4 8.6
Total oporaling lease payments receivable 48.2 49.0

15  Direct Operating Expenses for Investment Properties

in millions of EUR 2014 2013
Direct aperaling expenses for investment properies thal generate rental incoma:
Repairs and maintenance seivices (0.1} {0.1)
Utilities costs (0.7) 0.6)
Services relaling to invesiment property {0.6) 0.7}
Real gsiale tax 0.2) {0.2)
Total {1.6} {1.6)

16  Other Operating Expenses

in millions of EUR 2014 2013
Management fees (Note 8a) {19 (1.0)
Performance fee {Nole 8¢) - -
Legal and professional {ees (0.4) (0.4}
Total other operating expenses (1.5) {1.4)

17 Income Taxes

The SICAV is currenlly not liable to pay any corporate income tax or net worth tax in Luxembourg on its profits.
Distributions to shareholders as well as capital gain are tax exempl and no withholding lax is applicable. Dividend,
interest, other forms of income and capital gains received by the Fund on ils investment may have heen subject to
non-recoverable corporate lax or olher taxes in lhe countries of origin. The Fund Is however subject to an annual
subscription tax at an annual rate of 0.01% based on the NAY of the Fund at the end of each quarier. The holding
companies are subjecl lo the general tax regulation applicable to all Luxembourg “Commescial companies”. The Group
uses 22% as applicable 1ax rate to catculale its theoretical tax charge for 2014 as this is the rate applicable in the
Slovak Republic where majority of the Group's operations are located.

income tax expense comprises the following:

In mitlions of EUR 3 2044 2013
Current 1ax (0.1} -
Deferred tax (0.3) {0.6)

Income tax oxpense for the year (0.4) (0.6}
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17 Income Taxes (Continued)

Reconciliation between the expected and the actual laxation charge Is provided befow.

in miftions of EUR 20614 2013
Profitf{Loss) beforo tax 5.9 6.1
Theoretical tax chargel(credit) at applicable rale of 22% (2013: 23%) {£.3) (1.4}
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for laxalion purposes:

- Income exempt from laxation 0.9 0.8
Income tax exponse for Lhe year (0.4) {0.6}

Differences between IFRS and applicable stalutory taxation regulations give rise to temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their lax bases. The lax effect of the
movements In these temporary differences is detailed betow. Effeclive 1 January 2014 the lax loss utitisation period in
the Slovak republic was shortened from seven to four years. The other major change in these tax loss utilisation rules s
the oblfgation to ulilise lineary (ie. 25% each year) any lax losses bolh carred forward and aiising in the periods
beginning after 31 December 2013.

Chargedd Recognisedin

31 Decomber {credited) to  comprehensive 31 Docembar
In millions of EUR 2013 profit or loss income 2014
Tax effect of deductiblef{taxable) temporary
differencas
Investment propedties (2.0) (0.1} - (2.1}
Tax losses carded fonward 1.1 0.2 - 039
Nat deferred tax {liahility) (0.9) {0.3) - {1.2)

Charged! Recognised in

31 December {cradited) 1o comprehonsive 31 December
In miffions of EUR 2012 profit or loss income 2013
Tax offect of deduclible/{taxable) temporary
differences
Investment properlies (t.2 0.8} . {2.0)
Tax losses carried {orward 0.9 0.2 . 1.1

Net deferrod tax (liablilty) (0.3} {0.6) - {0.9)
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18 Financial Risk Management

The risk management function within the Group is carried out in respect of financial risks: credit dsk, market risk
{including changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rate and price risk}, liquidity risks, operational risks and
tegal risks. The primary objectives of the financhal risk management function are to establish risk limits, and then ensure
that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The operational and legal risk management functions are intended to
ensure proper functioning of internal policies and procedures to minimise operational and legal risks.

() Creditrisk

The Group lakes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one parly to a financial instrument will cause a financial
foss for the other parly by failing lo discharge an obligation. Exposure to ¢redit risk arises as a result of the Group's rental
income on credit terms and olher transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assels.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk by class of assels is as follows;

In millions of EUR 31 Decombor 2014 31 December 2013

Other non-current assets {Note 9}

Lease incentive receivables 23 19
23 1.9

Tradg and other recelvables (Note 10)

Trade receivables including accrued rental income 2.6 2.0

Cther financial receivables - 0.1
26 21

Cash and cash equivalents (Nole 11)

Cash al bank and on hand 4.9 59
4.9 59

Total maximum exposure to credit risk 9.8 9.9

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying value of its financial assets in the Gonsolidated
Stalement of Financial Posilion. The Group has no significant off-batance sheet exposures to credit risk as it did not
issue financial guarantees not loan commitments o olher parties.

The Group structures Ihe levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing fimits on the amount of risk accepted In relation lo
counterparties or groups of counterparties. Limits on the leve! of credil risk are approved regularly by Management. Such
fisks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual review.

Management has addilional policies in place to secure trade receivables from rental business. The Group uses system of
required bank guarantees or financial deposits lo secure its receivables from rental business based on lhe rating of
tenant.

The Group's management reviews ageing analysis of outslanding trade recelvables and follows up on past due
balances, Management therefore considers it appropriate to provide ageing and other information about credit risk as
disclosed in Nole 10.
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18 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial instruments subject to offsetling, enforceable master netting and similar arrangemenls are as follows at

31 December 2014:

Net amount

Gross amounts Gross amounls  after offselting

Amounts subject to mastar
neatting and simllar
arrangements not set off In the
statoment of financtal position

bofore offsetting  sot off in the inthe
in the statement  statement of  statorment of
of financial financia! financial Financial Cash collateral Netamount
position position position instruments roceivod of exposure
In millions of EUR a) b} c)=a)-b) d} o)  cled)-e)
Assols
Trade receivables 1.5 - 15 0.8 0.7 -
Liabillties
Cash collateral received
presenled within lrade and
olher payables 0.7 - 0.7 0.7 . -

Financlal instruments subject to offselling, enforceable master netling and simitar arrangements are as follows al

31 Decamber 2013:

Net amount

Gross amounls Gross amounts  after offselting

Amounts subjoct to master
notting and stmilar
arrangemonts not set off in the
statement of financial position

beloro offselling  setoff in the in the
in the statemont  statoment of  statement of
of financial financial financial Financial Cash collatoral Net amount
position position position instrumenits recelved of exposure
in milllons of EUR a} b} ¢] = a} - b) ] e} cj-d)-a)
Assots
Trade receivables 0.9 - 09 0.4 0.5 -
Liahilitios
Cash collateral received
presenled within {rade and
olher payables 0.5 - 0.5 0.5 - -

According to the generat terms and conditions of contracts with its customers, the Group requires either a cash collateral
or bank guarantee in favour of the Group to ensure ifs receivables are collectibte. The amount guaranteed by cash
callateral or a bank guarantee is assessed by the Group annually. The Group has a fight of sel-off of any batances
overdue against the collateral or amount drawn under a bank guaranlee.

The amounts in columns (d) and (e) in the above table are limiled o the exposure reported in column (c} for each
individual instrument in order not to understale the ullimate net exposura.

Credit risks concentrations

As for the banks and financial inslitutions, Group has relationships only wilh those banks that have high independent
raling assessment. The Group's bank daposits are held with 8 (2013: 7) banks as of 31 December 2014. The Group
management cansiders the concentralion of credit risk with respect to cash balances wilh banks as acceplable. The
analysis by credit quality (bank rating) is provided in Note 11.
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18 Financial Risk Management (Continted)
(ii) Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open posHions in (a) foreign currencies,
{b} interesl bearing assets and liabilities and (c) equity investments, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market movements.

Currency risk Management does not consider foreign exchange risk to be a significant oxposure to the Group's
operations and therefore does not set objectives, policies and processes for its management as Slovak Republic
adopted Euro as ils [egal currency on 1 January 2009. As a resull, the Group was not exposed to significant foreign
exchange risk related to transactions and balances denominaled in EUR.

Interest rate risk, The Group takes on exposure lo the effects of flucluations in the prevailing levels of market inleresl
rates on its financial position and cash flows. The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks.
The table presents the aggregated amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities al carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual interest repricing or maturity dales.

in millions of EUR Less than 6 months 6 —~12 months Over 12 menths Total
31 Dacember 2014

Total monelary financial liabilfies {102.9) - - (102.9)
Net interost sansitivity gap at 31 December 2014 {102.9} - . {162.9)

31 December 2013
Total monelary financial habiiities {106.5) - - {105.5}

Net Interest sensitivily gap at 31 December 2013 (106.5} - - {106.5}

Had the interest rales on the Group's variable interest rate loans (generally the third party borrowings} been by one tenth
fower than they have been throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 with all olher variables constant, profit for the
year would have been EUR 0.33 miltion higher (2013: EUR 0.34 million higher), mainly as a result of lower interest
expense on variable interest liabilites. Equity, after allowing for the tax effects, would have been EUR 0.26 million higher
{2013 EUR 0.26 mitlion higher).

Had the interest rates an the Group’s variable inferest rate loans been by one tenth higher than they have been
throughout the year ended 37 December 2014 with all other variables constant, profit for the year would have been
EUR 0.33 million Jower {2013: EUR 0.34 million lower), mainly as a result of higher interest expense on variable interest
jiabiliies. Equily, after allowing for the tax effects, would have been lower by EUR 0.26 million {2013: EUR 0.26 million).

(i) Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that an enlity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial fiabifities.

The table below shows liabitities al 31 December 2014 by their remaining contractual maturity. The amounts disclosed in
the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Such undiscounted cash flows differ from the amount
included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position because the Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position
amount is based on discounted cash flows.

Whan the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined by reference to the condilions existing at lhe
reporting date. Foreign currency payments are transtated using the spot exchange rate at the reporting date.
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18 Financlal Risk Management {Continued)
The malurity analysis of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Damand and

loss than From tto From 2 lo Ovor s
in milfions of EUR 12 month 2 ypars 5 yoars years Total
Liabllitles
Borravdngs (principal) (Note 12) 4.7 3.9 94.3 - 1062.9
Barrovings (fulure inlerest charges) 3.1 39 1.3 - 8.3
Financial payables - current {Note 13) 24 - - - 2.4
Total future payments, including fulure principal and
interost paymonts 10.2 7.8 95.6 - 113.6
The malturity analysis of financial liabilities as al 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Demand and

less than From 1 lo From 2 to Ovar s
In mitlions of EUR 12 month 2 yoars 5 yoars years Total
Liabiiities
Borrowings {(principal) (Nole 12) 4.6 39 98.0 - 106.5
Borrowings (future inlerest chargas) 3.4 3.9 7.3 - 14.6
Financial payables - current {Note 13} 3.1 - - - 31
Total future payments, Including futura principal and
intorest paymonts 1.1 7.8 105.3 - 124.2

On an ongeing basis, the Board of Managers of General Pariner reviews a two year rolling cash flow forecast on a
consolidated basis. The forecast for 2015 shows positive cash flow from praperly rental after property expenses and
general operaling expenses of the Group of approximately EUR 4.5 million (2014: EUR 3.6 million). This, logether with
existing cash balances would be sufiicient to meet the 2015 Group's financial obligalions as shown above, The Board of
Managers of General Partner is confident that the Group's cash position allows il lo keep pursuing new epportunities in
its chosen markets.

19 Fair Value Estimation

IFRS 13 requires the use of valuation techniques for which sufficient dala is available, maximising the use of observable

inpuls and minimising the use of unchservable inputs. The degree of detail of the disclosure depends on the

observability of the inputs used.

For this purpose, IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy thal classifies the inpuls into three levels:

- Quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markels for idenlical assets or liabilitiss (Level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability, either directlly {that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) {Levei 2).

- Inpuls for the assel or liabilily that are not based on observable market data (lhal is, unobservable inputs) (Levet 3).

(i) Investment properties

The foliowing table presents the group’s investment properties that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2014.

in milflans of EUR Level 1 Level 2 Leveld Tetal

Investment properly - - 163.8 163.8

Total assels . . 163.8 163.8
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19 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the group's investment properties that are measured al fair valug at 31 December 2013,

in millions of EUR Lovel 1 Lovol 2 Lovat 3 Total
investment properly - - 164.9 164.9
Tolal assels . . 164.9 164.9

Level 3 invesiment propeies are fair valued using discounted cash flow method, where the value Is estimaled from the
expected future benefils lo be generated by the properly in ihe form of rental income streams. The valuation technique
for level 3 is further described in Mole 3,

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using unobservable inpuls {leve! 3) for year ended 31 December 2014:

Falrvalue at 31 Average annual Capitalisation rate for

Segment Valuation technigue Docember 2014 rent/sqm Discount rato terminat value
Olfice Discounted cash flow 105 700 Q00 EUR 182 7.76% 7.24%
Logislics Discounied cash flow 28 500 000 EUR 53 9.13% 8.48%
Retai Discounled cash flow 31 900 000 EUR 252 8.25% 7.75%

Quantitative information abott fair value measurements using unobservable inpuls {level 3) for year ended 31 Decamber 2013

Falrvalue at 31 Average annual Gapltalisation rate for
Segment Valuation technlique December 2013 rent/sgm Digcount rate terminal value
Office Discounted cash flow 105 800 000 EUR 175 7.79% 7.28%
Logislics Discounted cash flow 29 400 000 EUR 65 9.15% 8.57%
Relail Discounted cash flow 31 600 000 EUR 254 8.25% 7.75%

Sensitivity of measurement to varlance of significant unobservable inpuls

A decrease in the estimated annual renf will decrease the fair value. An increase in the discount rates and the
capitalisation rates (used for terminal value of DCF method) will decrease the (air value,

There are interrelationships between these rates as they are parlially determined by market rate condilions. Please refer
to Nole 3 for the quantitative sensitivily analysis and Ihe description of the valualion process.

Investment property valuation process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of vatuation reports prepared by Independent
and qualified Valuer.

These reporls are based on both:

- information provided by the Group such as currenl rents, terms and condilions of lease agreements, service
charges, capital expenditure, etc. This information is derived from the company's financial and propesty
management systems and is subject to the company's averall conlrol environment,

- assumptions and valualion models used by the valuers — the assumplions are typlcally market related, such as
yields and discount rates. These are based on Ihelr professional judgment and market observation. Generally
for income producing assels a DCF and Direct capitalisation methods are used, for assels under construction
Residual method is used and comparative methodology is used for non-core and land bank assets.
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19 Falr value estimation {continued)

The information provided to the valuers and the assumptions and the valuation models used by the Independent Valuers
are reviewed internally by the controlling department and the Chief Financial Officer (*CFO”). This includes a raview of
fair value movements over the period. The same process is also performed externally by the External Valuer and
supervised by the Invesiment Manager.

{ii) Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current lransaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by an actlive quoted market price.
The eslimated fair values of financial instrumenis have been determined by the Group using available market
information, where it exists, and appropriate valuation methodologies as deseribed below. However, judgement Is
necessarily raquired to inlerprel market data lo delermine the estimated fair value.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost. The fair value of floaling rate instruments is normally their carrying
amotnt. The eslimated fair value of fixed interest rate instruments is based on estimaled future cash flows expected to
be received discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risk and remaining maturily.
Biscount rates used depend on credil sisk of the counterpariy.

Liabllities carrled at amortised cost. Considering that Borrowings have variable rale of interest and that own credit risk
of the Group did not significantly change, the carrying value under amorlised cost approximale its fair value. The fair
value of borrowings is classified in level 3.

26 Reconciliation of Classes of Financial Instruments with Measurement Categories

For the purposes of measurement, [AS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, classifies financial
assels into the following categories: (a) loans and recelvables: (b) available-for-sale financial assets; {c) financial assels
held to malwity and {d) financial assels at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). Financial assels at fair value
through profit or loss have two subcalegories: (i) assels designaled as such upon initial recognition, and
{ii} those classified as held for trading. The following table provides a reconcifiation of classes of financial assets with
these measurement categories.

At 31 Dacomber 2014 Loans and

In millilons of EUR receivables Total
ASSETS

Trade recelvables due from third parties indluding acerued rental income (Note 10) 26 26

Other financial receivables {(Note 10) - -
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 4.9 4.9
Rental indexation recelvables (Note 9) 23 23
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 5.8 9.8
At 31 Dacomber 2043 Loans and

In mitlions of EUR receivables Total
ASSETS

Teade receivables due from third parlies including accrued rental income (Note 10) 20 2.0
Qther financial receivables {Note 10} 0.1 01

Cash and eash equivalents (Note 11) 59 59

Rentalindexation receivables (Mote 9) 19 1.9

TOTAL FINANGIAL ASSETS 9.9 9.9
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20 Reconciliation of Classes of Financial instruments with Measurement Categories (continued)
All of the Group's financial liabililies are carried at amortised cost.
Other financlal
At 31 Decomber 2014 llabifilies — carrled
in millions of EUR at amortised cost Total
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables exchuding liabilities not falling under IFRS 7 (Note 13) 2.4 24
Borrowings (MNole 12) 102.9 1029
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 105.3 1053
Qther financial
At 31 December 2013 liabilities — catriod
In millions of EUR at amortised cost Total
LIABILITIES
Teade and other payables excluding liabifities not falling under IFRS 7 (Nole 13) 3.1 31
Borrovings {Note 12) 106.5 106.5
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 109.6 109.6

29 Events after the reporting date

There were no material evenls which occurred after the end of the financial year which have a bearing on the

underslanding of these consolidated financial statements,







